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CORPORATE INFORMATION
aFAEH

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Yao Jie

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Company Secretary

Ms. Yue Cheuk Ying

Qualified Accountant

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Audit Committee

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Hung Wai Man

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Hin Chi
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Nomination Committee

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman)
Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Auditors
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BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch
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China Citic Bank International
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China Merchants Bank

Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch
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DBS Bank

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch
Fubon Bank

Hang Seng Bank

ICICI Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
KBC Bank N.V.

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Shin Kong Bank
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
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(The above are shown according to alphabetical order)
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Corporate Information (continued)

DNEAEH (&)

Investor and Media Relations Consultant

Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit 3312, 33rd Floor

China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRBEE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, |
am pleased to present to shareholders
the annual report of VSTECS Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”
or “VSTECS”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Since its inception in 1991, VSTECS has always maintained a growth
momentum above the industry average, supported by the ongoing expansion
of its scope of business as well as target market, in the past 26 years. By
taking advantage of the opportunities brought by the big data boom in
the ever-changing technology sector, the results of the Group continued
to mount up to a historic high in 2017 with a turnover increase of 13.3%
to HK$54.5 billion and a surge in net profit of 29.8% to HK$716 million.

With 26 years of endeavour in business development, product diversification
and service expansion, VSTECS has become the largest science and
technology product solution and supply chain service platform in the Asia-
Pacific region. Its distribution network spans nine countries, namely China,
Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos and
the Philippines, and over 240 of its upstream partners are among Top
500 science & technology enterprises in the world. It also has more than
45,000 downstream business partners. The product offerings of VSTECS
are grouped into 12 main categories which are closely linked to the future
development of technology — cloud computing, mobile Internet, system
equipment, software, information security, network infrastructure, data
storage, computer accessories, Internet-of-Things application, video game
console, drone and virtual reality.
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Looking back to 2017, VSTECS enriched its business portfolio in response
to the increasing demand for hardware and software services for big data
analytics, cloud computing and innovative technology. In particular, VSTECS
Cloud and the information technology (IT) service divisions of VSTECS are
important platforms to push ahead with the enhancement of the Group’s
services.

VSTECS Cloud mainly offers integrated services, including consultation,
planning, operation, maintenance and training, to corporate clients for
establishing cross-cloud architecture platform. Its services also include
cloud Saas, backup for cloud disaster and data transfer between public and
private clouds, which are pinpointed by VSTECS Group as key corporate
services in development.

Based on the concept of Innovative Service 2.0, the IT services of VSTECS
comprise innovative service products from over 10,000 partners through
an integrated service and resource platform. Currently, more than 200,000
mega physical and virtual spare parts warehouses across the country have
been consolidated and over 1,000 certified engineers are engaging in the
development of the IT service markets for small and medium enterprises
in tier 4-6 cities.

During the year, VSTECS completed the new strategic layout of expanding

the existing 2B businesses and launching the new 2C businesses in 2017
by focusing on strategy upgrade and taking advantage of the opportunities

arising in the time of big data and mobile Internet.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEBREE(E)

The 2B businesses are principally provided on the following platforms:

Distribution and supply chain services for corporations by VSTECS; supply
chain financing by VSTMC which has the Internet microcredit licence; one-
stop cloud data services by VSTECS Cloud; IT resource integration for small
and medium enterprises by the information service division of VSTECS;
digitalised and multi-model logistic services by VES Supply Chains; industry
merger and acquisition and investment by VSTAM. The 2C businesses,
which specialise in New Retail, will be carried out by VSTCB.

Among the key business divisions in development, VES Supply Chains has
set up 3 national logistic centres, 5 regional distribution centres and 19
branch warehouses in the country since its establishment. It offers nearly
4,000 delivery options which guarantee local delivery within 1.5 to 3 hours
and delivery to 767 counties and cities within 48 hours, with a fulfillment rate
of over 96.5%. Corporate clients can now enjoy one-stop and multi-model
logistic services for all types of products through the national network of
VES Supply Chains.

VSTMC is one of the few companies having the Internet microcredit licence
to carry out money lending business across the country. It was granted
approval for commencing business on 30 August 2017 by the Financial
Services Office of Chongging. Such move marked the commencement of
the Group’s 2B supply chain financing business, which is expected to realise
low-risk and stable revenue by capitalising on the Group’s downstream
client resources in China, long track record of transactions and established
credit assessment system as well as the extensive experience of VSTMC’s
management in credit and factoring business for small and medium
enterprises in commercial banks.

VSTCB will explore a new form of retailing involving the deep integration
of online and offline shopping. The business will be conducted through
the self-developed online platform (VST Cool Buy Shopping Mall) and the
network of physical digital concept stores and convenience stores operated
in cooperation with its partners. With the support of VSTECS’s supply chain
services, product supply and channel network, Cool Buy will enjoy huge
competitive strengths in the retail arena.
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Synergy will be created between new business segments, particularly the
segments of cloud security, innovative information services, supply chain
financing and Cool Buy. Together with the one-stop integration services
comprising the elements of technology, financial services and the Internet,
VSTECS will form a closed loop business model, which will allow VSTECS
to become a technology powerhouse in the era of big data.

Prospects

Relentless in its pursuit of breakthrough, VSTECS has integrated the supply
chain service platform for IT products in the Asia-Pacific region, thereby
gaining competitive edges to outrun its industry peers in terms of growth
rate. The Group will see synergy between its new business segments,
particularly the segments of microfinance, financial services and Cool Buy.
Together with the one-stop integration services comprising the elements of
technology, financial services and the Internet, VSTECS will form a closed
loop business model, which will allow VSTECS to become a technology
powerhouse in the era big data.

Looking forward, VSTECS will go on a track of rapid advancement. The well-
established relationship with vendors, sizeable regional network, rigorous
internal workflow and competent management team will take the Group
to a new high. Despite the constant changes in the industry and the
challenging market environment, the Group will maintain robust growth.
Besides extending its reach to emerging markets in Southeast Asia, the
Group will increase its market share in countries such as China and those in
Southeast Asia, and spare no effort in providing more value-added services
so as to boost its profitability.

| would like to thank our shareholders for their staunch support for the Group,
and would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to
all our staff for the due performance of their duties as well as their strong
devotion to their work. My heartfelt thanks also go to our Board members
and business partners for their trust and support. The Group is confident
of overcoming the challenges ahead and will strive to maximise returns for
the shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION

*XERARERBAE R

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos. The main
businesses are (i) provision of information technology (“IT”) products; (ii)
provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure
design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services;
and (i) provision of network security hardware and software required for
big data and cloud computing. Leading IT vendors such as HP, Apple,
Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft,
Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of over 45,000
channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 26 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 45,000 resellers, comprising
retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These resellers not only
market a wide range of products but they also provide support and repair
services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management

10 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group has recorded another record high in revenue. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$54,543,084,000
(2016: HK$48,161,318,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$2,347,037,000 (2016: HK$1,856,738,000). Operating
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$1,081,553,000
(2016: HK$799,836,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$716,441,000 (2016: HK$551,915,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK50.34 cents (2016:
HK38.27 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the mobility digital devices segment increased
by 24.4% to HK$22,357,439,000, contributing 41% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the components products segment decreased by
2.9% to HK$13,242,819,000, contributing 24.3% of the total Group revenue.
Revenue from the cloud and big data analytics segment increased by 12.4%
to HK$10,557,511,000, contributing 19.3% of the total Group revenue.
Revenue from the network and data security segment increased by 17.2%
to HK$8,385,315,000 contributing 15.4% of the total Group revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in the
year ended 31 December 2017. During the year, revenue generated in North
Asia increased by 12.2% to HK$43,999,522,000, contributing 80.7% of the
total Group revenue. Revenue from South East Asia increased by 18% to
HK$10,543,562,000, contributing 19.3% of the total Group revenue. The
Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to provide
more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product lines
now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell,
IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates as well as others that are common to most if not all other businesses.
The directors have established a policy to ensure that significant risks which
may adversely affect the Group’s performance and ability to deliver on its
strategies, as well as those which may present positive opportunities, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are shown
in note 3 to the financial statements.

WD BLUE
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products will enable us to continue to drive growth
for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to increase market
shares as well as the range of products offered. This will enable the Group
to continue to focus on growth in all business segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand
our business into mobility devices and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$1,981,047,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,980,026,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$6,642,560,000 (2016: approximately HK$4,245,041,000). The gearing
ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by
total equity, was 0.96 (2016: 0.59).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded total current
assets of approximately HK$18,860,891,000 (2016: approximately
HK$15,055,941,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$15,775,273,000 (2016: approximately HK$10,541,032,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the
total current liabilities, was approximately 1.20 times as at 31 December
2017 (2016: approximately 1.43 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$3,863,638,000 as at 31 December 2016 to approximately
HK$4,834,714,000 as at 31 December 2017.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases and a building pledged against secured mortgage
loan as set out in notes 5 and 18 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 3,344 (2016: 2,626) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible employees
by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual performance.
Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement schemes. The
net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$676,626,000 (2016: approximately HK$549,016,000).
The Group also provides training courses or seminars to its staff.

16  VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017

EEMRT

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—8 AEEBHFAH
MIERAMASRAIBABFRBERERERFZ
ME BEEREREALABEEMRIBERE
W2 —BEEF -

HAREE

R-TB—+EFE+-A=+—8  KEETE
FREAEE -

=]

RZZ—+tE+-_A=+—H KA&EEEH
3,344%Z(-Z—7R4%F :2,626% )2 HESE -

AEBFZERERNETR  BEARREL
BEEEE MG -  BREAFHI 0 A
SENTELBARAULBARBEREGER
EEREBBLEARERE - E4EM6E
FEE FBREEKRTE  REBEE=F—
tF+ A=+ HLEFEINZLFHFHF
B X E676,626,000 (T —RF 4
549,016,000 7L) - ASE A B TR
ElE IEE R =



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
EFRAFIHERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 56, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr. Li is
also the director of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited
(“VST Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company.
He is responsible for the overall management and
strategic positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated
from Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of
China with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in
1983 and a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is
the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 46, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the director
of VST Computers, a subsidiary of the Company. He
is responsible for the overall financial management
of the Group. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from University College London and a
Master Degree in Analysis, Design & Management
of Information Systems from the London School
of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 49, is an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Operating Officer of
the Company. Ms. Chow has been working with
the Group since 1996. Ms. Chow started working in
business development for the East and North China
region and was appointed as operation director of
the Company in 2002. Currently, Ms. Chow is the
director of VST Computers and ECS Technology
(China) Limited (“ECS China”), both are subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Chow is responsible for the overall business operations
and management of VST Computers, and operation review and management
of the development in ERP solution for ECS China. Ms. Chow holds a
Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honours) in International Business from the
University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom.

HITES

TEMELE 565  ARBEERAZ KA
RAER  THRABFATESE - FTELETD
RARBMBARBHER(ZEE)BERAQA
(RAEERDZEF - RARAKEZER
EETHERRBHE  FAEEERPEA
REAMBBEKRE  R—-AN\=ZFBEIRE
BETEM YR —ANANFRESEE TR
BMETBM - FEERARBRTEETFHE
HEZBR -

IRFRE 465 ARBINTESTHEE
BEFEMBEE - TERETRARFKERR
BHERZES REEASEZERUG
B - IRAERERBIAREBREEES L
BULKRABAKEEREARROMN - &
SAREEEELTEN - TREAERE RE
BUEFEdmhe T ESHMAGER

==

BREZLT 493  ARAHTEERE
HEFELERE PRLLBE-NNAARFER
AEBEXE SUBEERMFELLHRZE
BER N TTZ_FEZERARAZE
BRE B FRLBEARAAWMB QA
BAEMEEANMR(PE)BERAB(TENR
TEDZER BRIt EEEAEM I BR
EGLEREENRERNTEHZEEEER
ERPEAFTRMAHEER - L LtHBRER
RHFBEARBCARABNEL(RE)B
fiz o

EHaxpRpERAs —T—+tasew 17



Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPFAIMNEERE (E)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 48, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan has over 20
years of experience in personal computer and
semiconductor industry. Mr. Chan is currently the
Senior Vice President — Product Management
of VST Computers, an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan
served as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in
charge of the distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 29, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012 and is currently the Vice
President — Channel Sales of VST Computers, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for sales and distribution in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University
of Chicago in the United States of America. Mr. Li
is also a CFA charterholder. He is a member of the
CFA Institute and the Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts. Mr. Li is
the son of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. YAO Jie, aged 39, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Yao
joined the Company in October 2015 as Senior
Vice President, Strategy and Investment of the
Company. Mr. Yao is mainly responsible for strategy
development, merger and acquisition projects
and investment, brand communication as well as
corporate social responsibility of the Company.

) Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yao served
as Executive Director and President of New Energy Exchange Limited,
which is a subsidiary of China Merchants New Energy Group, and Chief
Communications Officer and Spokesperson of United Photovoltaics Group
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company under China Merchants Group,
responsible for investor relations management and capital market practices.
From 2009 to 2013, Mr. Yao served as Chief Representative and General
Manager of Investor Relations at China XLX Fertiliser Limited, the largest
private-owned urea producer in PRC, responsible for investor relations
and offshore fundraising. Previously, Mr. Yao worked in several sizable
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

and prestigious companies including a NASDAQ listed company, a largest
independent brand communications firm in the United Kingdom as well as
a top Chinese public relation company. Mr. Yao has more than 15 years’
extensive experiences in listed company management, investor relations,
capital market fundraising as well as brand communications.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LIANG Xin, aged 46, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in December
2013. Mr. Liang graduated with a Bachelor Degree
from the Department of Statistics of the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in the People’s
Republic of China in 1992. Mr. Liang obtained a
Master Degree in Finance from the Xiamen University
in the PRC in 2005. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Liang
has held various positions in the PRC government
and the private sector. Mr. Liang has worked as a section officer in the
Division of Human Resources and Education of Fujian Provincial Department
of Finance. Mr. Liang has also worked as a section officer in &&= H{Z
L% & A7) (Fujian Huaxing Trust and Investment Company Limited). Mr.
Liang has worked as a head of general office in &7 % (Huaxing Securities
Company Limited) (“Huaxing Securities”) and has held the position of general
manager in the Research and Development Department, the Securities
Trading Department and the Investment Banking Department in Huaxing
Securities where he was responsible for the stock and futures trading and
investment banking businesses. Mr. Liang has participated in a number of
initial public offering, listing recommendation, reorganisation and acquisition
and distribution work in the PRC. Since June 2004, Mr. Liang has served
as head of investment department, secretary of the board of directors, and
vice president in Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (
YT e At FESE IR D A BR A 7)), the issued shares of which are listed in
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPFAIMNEERE (E)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 63, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 20 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is now an independent non-executive director of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Qianhai Health Holdings Limited,
the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 54, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 29 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an
independent non-executive director of China Environmental Technology
and Bioenergy Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit
Committee and members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. HUNG Wai Man, JP, aged 49, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in May 2016. Mr. Hung is the President of Internet
Professional Association, Executive Chairman of
Chinese Big Data Society, Academic Committee
Member of PanGoal Institution and Principal Liaison
Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen Qianhai Authority.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel
investor. He has worked in the computer industry for
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

almost 30 years. A well-known figure in the industry, Mr. Hung has extensive
experience in management consulting, project management and outsourcing
services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology Professional and a
fellow of the British Computer Society, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
the Hong Kong Computer Society and the Internet Professional Association.
He has been appointed as the Director and the eminent expert representing
Hong Kong and China by the World Summit Awards.

Mr. Hung is currently the Vice Chairman of China Overseas Friendship
Association’s Youth Committee, Member of the Shenzhen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Member of the Chinese Association of
Hong Kong and Macau Studies, Vice President of Guangdong’s Association
For Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao,
Commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol, Chairman Emeritus of
the Y.Elites Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte Jade Science and
Technology Association of Hong Kong, Secretary General of Hong Kong-
ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation and Council Member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association etc. In 2012 to
2014, he had served as an associate member of the Central Policy Unit of
the HKSAR Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was selected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He was the 11th Standing
Member of the All China Youth Federation. In 2015, he was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he was
given the Asia Social Innovation Leadership Award by CMO Asia.

Mr. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher
Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He then obtained a BA(Hons)
from the University of Bolton, MBA from the University of Hull and MA in
Public and Comparative History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a LLM from the Renmin University of China and PhD in
Business Administration from Bulacan State University, the Philippines and
is currently pursuing his LLD study with the Renmin University of China.
Mr. Hung also serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 62, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPFAIMNEERE (E)

From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National Economic System
Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research Office, later he
was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to 1994, he acted
as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-Tech Industry
Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed to many important
positions, such as director, deputy general manager of Hong Kong Jing-
Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager and chairman of
board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited, board director
and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company Limited, and
the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice president of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present, Mr. Wang acts
as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust and Investment
Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing International Trust
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 37, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the
Group in 2009.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R

This Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, which covers the overall performance, policies and practices
of the Group’s business and operations in terms of its environmental and
social responsibilities, for the year ended 31 December 2017. The ESG
Report mainly focuses on the aspects that have identified as material to
the Group’s business and its key stakeholders.

As a leading distributor of Information, Communication and Technology
(“ICT”) products in Asia, we strive to maximize the long-term benefits
of all our stakeholders by continuously communicating with them and
effectively balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to
achieve sustainable development of the Company. Our key stakeholders
include the shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, environment and
community, etc.

A. Environmental Protection

The Group undertakes environmental protection as part of its corporate
responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance of sustainable
environmental development in promoting sustainability in its operations.
The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment.

Emissions

As our business is mainly trading in nature, the operations of our Group
does not have significant impacts on air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group is minimal. The most common emissions
from our daily business activities are mainly generated from the offices
and warehouses consumption of electricity and the Group does not
produce any hazardous waste in its operations. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance issues related to
the environmental laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Use of Resources

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while
endeavours to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent
the unnecessary waste of resources and minimize the impacts on
the environment and natural resources. Due to the nature of our
business, the resources used by the Group are principally attributed
to electricity and paper consumed at our offices and warehouses.
Due to our business nature, our operation does not involve direct
consumption of water and packaging materials. Water consumption
by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the Group’s
offices and warehouse only.

Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses and
we do not involve large electric facilities for operation. In view of
that, we consider electricity consumption attributed to less significant
to our Group. However, the Group continues its commitment in
reducing the energy consumption by reminding employees to switch
off their computers before leaving office, switch off the lighting in
the conference rooms and other functional rooms when they are not
in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy-saving mode
whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep the
office temperature at 25°C so as to ensure the efficient use of the
air-conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses is limited for
daily office use as well as some printing materials such as annual/
interim reports and circulars which are required to be distributed to
the shareholders. To save the environment, the Group continues the
efforts in reducing and recycling of paper usage, by reminding our
staff to have environmentally friendly printing and photocopying habit,
encouraging double-sided printing and scanning documents to the
Company’s server system rather photocopying whenever possible,
implementing password system for colour printing and separate
collection of waste paper and used envelopes for reuse and recycling.
For those printing materials, we will not over-printing and will print
on demand and encourage our readers make use of the company’s
website.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact
and use of natural resources is considered minimal. Nevertheless, our
Group is endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources
as a responsible corporate citizenship.

Social

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous
community atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote
long-term corporate benefit. Through the areas on our employment
and labour practices, operational practices and social involvement,
we establish a mutually beneficial relationship with our internal and
external stakeholders.

Employment

The Group believes that employees are the most important and
valuable assets contributing to the key of success and sustainable
growth of the Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies
with all the relevant labour laws and regulations under respective
jurisdictions. The Group treats all the employees equally that their
employment, remuneration, promotion or dismissal will not be affected
by their social identities such as race, nationality, gender, religion,
age and marital status.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a yearly basis based on
individual performance and the market situation. Employees are also
entitled to discretionary bonus, share options and Company’s shares
to recognize their contributions to the Group by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual performance. Other benefits
include medical insurance, paid and maternity leaves and retirement
scheme are provided.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

Health and Safety

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group
is committed to maintain a safe and healthy working environment
and offer occupational safety training to employees. The Group also
provides guidelines to staff in warehouses in order to raise awareness
on occupational safety and health. For example, warning notice is
placed around the warehouse for reminding the employees the careful
operation of electric reach trucks. During the year under review,
the Group did not have any work related fatality case or any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Apart from workplace safety, a healthy lifestyle is promoted to the
employees. The Group organizes annual dinner, Christmas party and
Chinese New Year lunch every year to share the joy and happiness
amongst the employees and enhance their sense of belonging. Also,
to have a better work-life balance between the employees, overtime
working is not encouraged unless it is necessary. Employees are
encouraged to participate in other activities such as sports or other
interest courses to achieve a healthy work-life balance.

Development and Training

The Group considers development and training is one of the important
elements contributing the success of the Group. The Group provides
on-the-job and internal training to different levels of staff. Employees
are also highly encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that related to their job nature to enrich their knowledge
in discharging their duties. Our training covers products knowledge,
sales and marketing, operational skills, workflow management skills,
leadership and management skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant rules and regulations
in relevant jurisdictions relating to child and forced labour. The
Group prohibits the employment of child and forced labour in any
of our operations. All the employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

Every potential job applicant is required to complete the employment
application form, which will be checked and reviewed by the Human
Resource Department to ensure the information provided is accurate.
During the year under review, the Group did not have any issues
relating to child or forced labour or any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

As aleading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms
a very essential part in the Group. The Group implements an efficient
supply chain management system that strengthen the role of different
parties between suppliers, distributors and retailers and to ensure
high quality of services and products are delivered to our customers.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to name
a few. Majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and regulations
in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply with
relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard.
The Group emphasizes on the relationship and communications with
the suppliers to promote sustainable development. The Group has
strict selection process on its suppliers taking into considerations
such elements as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality
and recall policy, market conditions and customers’ preference. The
Group will communicate with the suppliers and distributors regularly
to maintain a good relationship with them and review and monitor
the performance of the suppliers and provide feedback to them from
time to time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

Product Responsibility

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the
Group carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. The Group
will review the specifications of each product provided by the suppliers
before launching to our customers to ensure that each product
provided to customers are up to their standards and requirements.

As a comprehensive distributor, we not only endeavour to provide high
quality products to our customers, but also wide range of value-added
services to our suppliers and customers. We provide product return
and exchange procedures for our customers and we will report and
provide feedback on any complaints about the quality of the products
to our suppliers for their further review and improvement.

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy
of every customer. All the employees are obligated to retain in
highly confidential any information obtained in connection with their
employment, such as client information and supplier information.

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of
intellectual property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to
sell its products, we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and
conditions on the sale of the products and a distributor agreement
will be signed by both parties to ensure that the Group has the right
and authority to sell the products on behalf of the suppliers.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout
its operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable.
The Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There
are anti-corruption and anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the
employees. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group has a Compliance Department to monitor the compliance
issue and to ensure that all employees are aware of the importance
of integrity and honesty as the Group’s core value. The Group has
stringent Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our
business partners to follow strictly. There are two aspects in the
Group’s Code of Conduct. One is related to employees. All newly
joined employees are required to sign the Employee’s Handbook
and an Integrity Declaration and attend anti-corruption training. All
employees are also required to attend anti-corruption training every
year to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for our business
partners, such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to anti-
corruption are included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to
ensure both parties are fully aware of their responsibilities.

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels
for employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action.
All the information collected and received will be kept confidential and
the Group’s internal audit department will conduct internal investigation
and report to senior management.

Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting
and engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve
a harmonious and sustainable development between enterprise and
the community.

The Group has great focus on education and development of young
people in supporting the community. During the year under review, the
Group continued to work with Graduate School of Shenzhen Tsinghua
University to set up a technology and innovation research centre to
support the technology development in China. At the same time, the
Group can attract potential employees from students graduate from
the research centre to increase the competitiveness of the Group.
The Group also made donation to Tsinghua Alumni Association of
Hong Kong and Tsinghua University Education Foundation to support
the long-term education development in both Hong Kong and China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of
its business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eleven members, consisting of six Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Yao Jie

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE(E)

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of enhancing
Board effectiveness and coporate governance as well as achieving better
performance of the Company. In designing the board composition, board
diversity can be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional skills, industry experience and knowledge and length of service.
In considering these perspectives on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its business model and specific needs from
time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out
this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve better
performance of the Company.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE(E)

Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings
Directors X HEBITERRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin PEMEE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William FEMTEE 4/4
Ms. Chow Ying Chi HREL+ 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau RN e A 4/4
Mr. Li Yue FIREE 4/4
Mr. Yao Jie AR AE 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Liang Xin R 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIX FHITES
Mr. Li Wei FREE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi BRI E 4/4
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREE 4/4
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FrERELAE 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when necessary,
other committee meetings to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.
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Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executives directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin,
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau, Mr. Liang Xin, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Xiaolong,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
23 May 2017 due to other important engagements. All other directors had
attended the 2017 annual general meeting to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the Directors
proposed to be re-elected.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each
Board committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information”
of this annual report.
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

(d) To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2017 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control systems
and the re-appointment of the external auditors.
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The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set
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BERKEHEEZZESGHR ZBERET W

out below: T
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HE S BITEERE
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) ERBEE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei TEEA 2/2
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREE 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FrERLEA 2/2

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2017 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market
level of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed
to be made.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee
meeting is set out below:

YFINZEemURBIIFNTESHEK - @
ARBHEFEHFHNZESESR 2BRARIMT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE S BITERARE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) TREE () 11
Mr. Lam Hin Chi EREBLAE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAERLEE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong TrEfREA 1/1

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2017 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HE S BITERARE

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) TEMEE (FF) 11
Mr. Li Wei TIREA 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAERKE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FEERESE A 11

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$5,229,000 and HK$2,522,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of
the Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

REUBHRRZEEREE
B B <=

EFGRERFRRDMRE  BHEEA
15 50 TR AR 7 4R TR R A B AR B M
ZREBREEBELIRHT  EWRTIEEZ
#HE -

EERRAREAEAREARABE_FT—
tE+_A=T-"RLFEZHBRE -

ARBSINEBZBRMEREASMERRARE
EZBABRBIZBENRE | -

RARRZHNBEBRMAZESTHBETMER
freBz2-_—+tF+=-_A=+—HLHF
E 25BeMEBANERRIEEZ
Bk 75 17 AN 52 B 5 Bl YL EL 495,229,000 7T &
2,522,000 7T °

R\ B TR R R ED R 4

EFECRANREEANMZRAREERAR
EEHE  ARERRNIKRE - BARES
ARBIZEHREE EFETAEATFR
LB B TR R TR R BE AR IR 2 BORR o

EHaxppERas —T+taaw 41



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRS (K)

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control framework,
covering all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The risk management and internal control framework also provides
for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.

Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and emplyees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.
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There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operaton of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assuance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will conitunue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (formerly known
as VST Holdings Limited, the “Company”) are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of information technology (“IT”) products,
provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure
design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services, as
well as the provision of network security hardware and software required
for big data and cloud computing.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 9 and pages
11 to 16 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
11 to 16 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social and Governance
Report are set out on pages 23 to 29 of this annual report. The Corporate
Governance Report are set out on pages 30 to 44 of the annual report.
In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial Summary
on page 172 of this annual report.

Change of Company’s Name

By a special resolution passed on 27 June 2017, the name of the Company
was changed from VST Holdings Limited to VSTECS Holdings Limited and
the Company adopted “EftERZEKRBR AR as its dual foreign
name in Chinese to replace its former Chinese name “fE{# %

BRAF".
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2017 represented
approximately 8% (2016: approximately 9%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for approximately
24% (2016: approximately 25%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2017
represented approximately 18.9% (2016: approximately 18.5%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 62% (2016: approximately 63%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2017.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 72.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 of approximately HK14.7 cents per ordinary share (2016:
approximately HK12.4 cents).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 74 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
which include share premium, capital reserve and retained earnings,
amounted to approximately HK$745,525,000 (2016: approximately
HK$902,508,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles

of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 172.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased
320,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares
by the Company are as follows:

No. of shares Highest price per

BE  HEIEEORZS
KBE-FT—tF+-A=+—ALFE

NAIREE X AT E 320,000 A A Al & i@
f% - BRIZERMEWEHE - BEEAAQRER
a2 FBWT

Lowest price per Aggregate price

Month of repurchase repurchased share (HK$) share (HK$) paid (HKS)

BRESE EBRBEE 2T AER

BE A4 BEROEE (BT) (BT) (Bx)

August 2017 320,000 2.20 2.16 698,800
—+t&FN\A

320,000 698,800

The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to an enhancement EEeHEZ BEEBRMTELRNEIESARQT

of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per share.

Apart from the above, the Company also acquired, through a trust setup
specifically for purpose of employment compensation, a total of 3,356,000
ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 from the open market at a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$9,569,000. These shares would be used primarily for providing
employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition
of shares are recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Yao Jie

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non- executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2017 or at any time during the
year under review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out
on pages 17 to 22.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

DWeckws’Repon(conﬂnued)
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBERN EARRAREE&T
EEnA L8 514 HEROEE REAZBIEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 68,539,200 4.69%
FEMEE TR EmEAA

Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%

wE EanlEBA PN E
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.32%

S~y corporation (Note 1)

RPUEEER (Btat1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.00%

IR Kk (Note 2)

(Biat2)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

= R & 1T B A
R4~ B R ERES
e B
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(continued) (&
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBRK EARAREET
EEnA 8% 54 HEROGEE REAZBHEIL
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 553,600 0.04%
FREMTE R BEmEAA
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
TR BEnEEA 17 B A v
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,056,000 0.07%
FREL+ R BEREAA
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
TR BEnEEA 1) i R
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 440,000 0.03%
BRGNSt A4 A BEmREAA
Long Beneficial owner 700,000 Share options 0.05%
THE BEnEBA 1) i R
Mr. Yao Jie Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
A E R BEREAA
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 240,000 Share options 0.02%
FIERAE TE BEREEA 1) i R
Notes: B
1. 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. A XA Z311,228,000 M BEL &L
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Limited¥ % - ML & L LimitedZ &% B %
Ms. Liu Li. TRABFEMREERERBHFH L LHE
A -
2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of 2. AAE)2204,309,6000 B 15 B = EM T A
Mr. Li Jialin. ZhRBEFILLEHER -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:

FTERRREMAALTR
R > HEARDREERZ

BERAR

RZE—+F+ZA=Z+—HB HEEFMH
HoUATALTRARA 2GR, 28 B R
R EEREZESF BB G EXVIEE2 M3
DR ZGEXARAR DR R TRE 2w
R/SRKE - RS HBRBARRAIREES
MEEGPIEBeKRFEZERM 2 #E R
gKkE - RSP EATEEABERTRA
SEEMEMKE AR ZRRAG LRAZ
BMZEFMERBRATEESEZEEEE
5%k A £z S

Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
FEEZBREN BMAORE
BRMEEEB BRE 3% HEROEE Bok
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 68,539,200 4.69%
FEMEE HE ERERA

Long Beneficial owner 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%

wE BaEBA 0 BB R
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.32%

e corporation (Note 1)

REAE R (BeE1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.00%

Sy ENY (Note 2)

(Btet2)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERRRHEMA TR
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying B - HEBROREREEZ
S S A &)
Shares and Debentures (ontinued) ERER AR
Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BEEBR: BORE
BRERESEB 587 54 HEROEE B
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.00%
ZIF 22+ wE EnlEBA
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.32%
[§8-) corporation (Note 1)
R AR (KizF1)
Long Family interest 68,539,200 4.69%
TR ENi-3 i (Note 3)
(BtsE3)
Long Family interest 1,800,000 Share options 0.12%
wE Kk PN E
(Note 4)
(Ktata)
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.32%
e EREAEA (Note 5)
(Kiats)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.28%
e (HE)BRAA HE EnlEBA (Note 6)
(Hizt6)
YT e R At FE s AR D Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.28%
BRATA S~y corporation (Note 7)
R AR R (Ki7t7)
YT rAaﬁ BT &R Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.28%
BRA e corporation (Note 8)
R EEE R (Ki7E8)
mEERRRAERLAE —T+55% 55
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERRERHEMBALTR
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying B - HEBROREREEZ

Shares and Debentures (continued) EERAE @

Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BEEBR: BORE
BRMEEERB BRE 54 HEROEE B
Mr. Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.28%
B 5 A e corporation (Note 8)
R AR (Ki7#8)
FR B OERTT Long Security interest in shares 252,211,998 17.28%
R M in R (Note 9)
(K15£9)
BRINEEIED Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.28%
S~Y corporation (Note 9)
ZEE R (K1:£9)
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 149,848,300 10.26%
e E=AA
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled 166,114,038 11.38%
S~y corporation
R EEE R
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund Long Beneficial owner 129,508,000 8.87%
THE EREBA
Mutual Funds Elite Long Custodian corporation 76,174,400 5.22%
A FEEAT
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued)

Notes:

1.

311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

68,539,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

1,800,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse
of Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin
and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by &3l
MR EERG BRAA.

36.72% of the shares of &kIITT 1A B EHE (D AR QA are held by J&YI|
eIt LR AR AR
100% of the shares of FIITT 18 TR BT EIEAZA R A 7] are held by Mr. Zhou

Guohui.

89.26% of the shares of B H O #R1T are held by IRINEEIRF.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgmE(E)

Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (th
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted
under the New Scheme. Further details of the New Scheme are set out in

note 14 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share options have been cancelled under
the Old Scheme. Details of the share options movement under the Old

Scheme are as follows:

B

RRmEzBRES S

RZZBZ_FOATEERAZARAEERKR
BAB(TEFEDEER ~A2ANR-ZE
—HERAZTZBRMAN BN BRETS
([#58)) BEERAERZRERAEE
FHZERMREABNEE - ROEFEH
ERBEH R BEMBRE - 582
—HHBEEN M RERME14 -

REEFERECRNBREREES ST
o BB THEREZS ZFHNOT :

As at Exercised Lapsed As at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price per
Name or category of participant Date of offer 2017 the year the year 2017 share (HKS) Exercise period
RZB-tF RZB-t§ SRTEE
SREN AR RTEH -A-H RERTE RERER  TZA=1-H (Bx) ;2]
Directors
gz
Mr. Li Jialin 23/08/2011 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 2028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
X2
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 23/08/2011 1,440,000 - - 1,440,000 2028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
TEfrs
Ms. Chow Ying Chi 17/02/2011 1,440,000 - - 1,440,000 2207 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
gREat
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 28/08/2011 1,440,000 (740,000 - 700,000 2028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
[ty bk
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 240,000 - - 240,000 2028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
eyt
Sub-total /3f: 6,360,000 (740,000) - 5,620,000
Employees 17/02/2011 10,320,000 (5,040,000) (960,000) 4,320,000 2207 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
&8
Total 43t 16,680,000 (5,780,000) (960,000) 9,940,000
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgmE(E)

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 30 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is
less than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements
were entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which is of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIAZBENERS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited (formerly known as VST Holdings Limited, “the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 70 to 171, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBEE(E)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FARENEE

MR FHEIRE R I T X HE

 RARBAHEEMBRERNEBAZAZTENSTE - GEERARERMEBTER

REMBHRAREABARBETREN - RATSHELERRERAEBNER -

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 94.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted
to HK$4,263,699,000 (approximately 22.6% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2017.

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and their net
realisable value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and the future
expenses necessary to make the sales. Future demand and
selling prices of technology products are highly susceptible
to factors such as industry standards, technological changes
and customer preferences, which are constantly changing and
could change very rapidly.

Determining provisions for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because any write-down or provisions may have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements and because
the estimation of the net realisable values involves the exercise
of significant management judgement which can be inherently
uncertain.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls over the inventory write-down and
provision assessment process, including the Group’s
monitoring controls over slow-moving inventories;

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with relevant purchase records, including purchase
invoices and goods receipt notes;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity
sold subsequent to the reporting date and inspecting
inventory turnover rates during the current and previous
financial years; and

° assessing the historical accuracy of write-downs and
provisions for inventories at the end of the previous
financial year by examining movements in the balance
of provisions for inventories during the current year.

EHEARRERAT —T2—+t54% 063



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Valuation of trade receivables
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Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 95.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s net trade receivables amounted to
HK$10,833,758,000 (approximately 57.4% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2017.

The Group’s customers operate in a number of geographical
locations with different credit profiles, such that the timing of
trade receivables’ settlement may be influenced by market/
geographical norms.

Management’s assessment of impairment of trade receivables
is based on a number of factors which include ageing of overdue
receivables, customers’ repayment histories, customers’
financial positions and market conditions. All of the above
factors may be inherently uncertain.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of trade receivables
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
Group’s key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and making impairment provisions for
doubtful debts;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the relevant sales invoices;

° identifying significant or long overdue trade receivables
by inspecting the ageing reports and challenging
management’s assessment of those trade receivables’
recoverability, taking into consideration the ageing of
the balances, credit terms, recent settlement patterns,
identified default or disputes, the debtors’ financial
condition and recent communications with debtors;



Valuation of trade receivables (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the identification and measurement
of impairment of trade receivables involves significant
management judgement in assessing factors which can be
inherently uncertain and could be subjective thereby increasing
the risk of error or management bias.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B AR E (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit continued)

comparing the cash received subsequent to the reporting
date for trade receivable balances as at 31 December
2017 with bank statements and other relevant underlying
documentation, on a sample basis; and

° evaluating the historical accuracy of provisions for
impairment of trade receivables made by management
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when making provisions for impairment
of trade receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZHEMRE (&)

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZHEMRE (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continue)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continue)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Hui Chuen Hoi.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI E

As at 31 December 2017 A =—Z—+tF+=-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FHET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R REE 5 463,372 280,308
Goodwill 2 6 322,995 306,905
Interests in associates RERE R B ER 8 868,238 529,946
Interest in a joint venture RE BB FENER 9 43,844 48,470
Deferred expenses EEFA 10 5,145 4,792
Deferred tax assets EEFIB & 2 17 88,867 66,689
1,792,461 1,237,110
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 R H b WA 10 12,616,145 9,367,625
Inventories 8 11 4,263,699 3,708,290
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 12 1,981,047 1,980,026
18,860,891 15,055,941
Total assets HEE 20,653,352 16,293,051
EQUITY R
Share capital f& A 13 145,986 145,440
Reserves [ExE 4,688,728 3,718,198
Total equity AR 4,834,714 3,863,638
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

=
N

B BMR R (&)

As at 31 December 2017 A - —tF+=-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mzt FHBxT FHIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income EIEUA 16 6,821 6,239
Borrowings BE 18 642 1,848,919
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEAE 17 35,902 33,223
43,365 1,888,381
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHE MR FHIE 16 8,994,783 8,098,508
Borrowings (=9 18 6,641,918 2,396,122
Taxation payable FERIHEIA 138,572 46,402
15,775,273 10,541,032
Total liabilities was 15,818,638 12,429,413
Total equity and liabilities EEREEER 20,653,352 16,293,051
Net current assets REBEERE 3,085,618 4,514,909
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAERS 4,878,079 5,752,019

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March

2018.

Li Jialin
F{EM
Director

EF

Chow Ying Chi
gz
Director

EF

The notes on pages 77 to 171 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FEalRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2017 2016
—ZT—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BEE FHET FAET
Revenue & 19 54,543,084 48,161,318
Cost of sales SHEE BN (52,196,047) (46,304,580)
Gross profit EF 2,347,037 1,856,738
Other gains, net HEMUAFRE 20 18,211 8,906
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DR (849,407) (731,582)
Administrative expenses THAX (434,288) (334,226)
Operating profit 48 A 21 1,081,553 799,836
Finance costs A% & A 22 (204,861) (141,242)
876,692 658,594
Share of associates’ profits DA E R T 48,528 36,108
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIEEEDEEE (5,509) (5,927)
Profit before taxation BB R & A 919,711 688,775
Taxation I 23 (203,270) (136,860)
Profit for the year F R A 716,441 551,915
Attributable to: T AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RRAAIERFFEA 716,441 551,915
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FRREN (FRE)
- Basic —&EK 26 50.34 cents fll 38.27 cents li
~ Diluted —BE 26 50.25 cents il 38.17 cents fli
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders [EfTHEZS G AL B
Final dividend proposed FORRHAIRE 25 215,000 180,000

The notes on pages 77 to 171 are an integral part of these financial ES
22

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeREME2El AR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—FT—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Profit for the year 716,441 551,915
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FREMBEKA - BRI -

Exchange differences 404,660 (248,649)
Total comprehensive income for the year FARAZEBPAETE 1,121,101 303,266
Attributable to: BT AL :

Equity shareholders of the Company RRABERFFBA 1,121,101 303,266

The notes on pages 77 to 171 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bl ZE T —+F +_A=+—HILEFE

Equity
attributable to
Capital the Company’s
Share  redemption Capital General  Translation Deferred Retained equity
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Other reserve reserve earnings  shareholders
FAER
HEAE
e KEE EXEEGE ERGE - EXGE EthifE BERE REER Ei
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Fin T T Tk Fin T Fin Tk Fhn Fin
Note () Note (i) Note i) Note (iv) Note (v) Note (vi) Note fvi
i) it Wity i) it it Wit
Balance as at 1 January 2016 REZF-RE-A-AzEH 145,536 833,782 7,116 18,870 59,863 (159,843 (84,239 - 2,998,022 3,819,107
Profit for the year FRgF - - - - - - - - 551,915 561915
Other comprehensive income E2EHA - - - - - (248,649) - - - (048,649)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALE
for the year - - - - - (248,649 - - 551,915 303,266
Dividend paid BfRE - - - - - - - - (180,350) (180,350)
Transfer of reserve R - - - - 63,197 - - - (63,197) -
Deferred shares iR - - - - - - - (76,741) - (76,741)
Shares repurchased BEARR
— Parvalie -EE (%) - - - - - - - - (%)
— Premium paid -BHAE - - - - - - - - (1,548) (1,548)
— Transfer between reserves -EEEE - - % - - - - - %) -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 RZZ-1F
+ZA=t-8268 145,440 833,782 7212 18870 123000 (408492) (84239 {6741 3304746 3863638
Representing: f%:
Share capital e 145,440
Resenves L 3,538,198
Proposed dividend HERE 180,000
3,863,638
Balance as at 1 January 2017 R=F-t§-A-8
i 145,440 833,782 7,212 18,870 123,060 (408,492) (84,239) (76,741) 3,304,746 3,863,638
Profit for the year EREFH S o = = = - - - 716,441 716,441
Other comprehensive income Efr2ENA - - - - - 404,660 - - - 404,660
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALE
for the year = - - - - 404,660 - - 716,441 1,121,101
Dividend peid BfRe - S = = . 5 = - (180406) (180,406)
Transfer of reserve GEmEs - - - - 24,53 - - - (24,532) =
Share options exercised BEfEERE 578 18,288 - (6,141) - - - - - 12,725
Share options lapsed BRERN - - - (1,125) - - - - 1,125 -
Deferred shares purchased BRERERR - - - - - - = (9,569) = (9,569)
Vesting of deferred shares ELRHER = = = = = = = 21,924 = 21,924
Shares repurchased BREERR
— Par value -HE (32) - - - - - - - - (32
— Premium paid -BItEE - - - - - - - - (667) (667)
— Transfer between reserves -FErEg - - 32 - - - - - (32) =
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RIE-t%
TZA=T-HZE4% 145,986 852,070 7,244 11,604 147,592 (3,832 (84,239) (58,386) 3,816,675 4,834,714
Representing: fi&:
Share capital i 145,986
Reserves G 4,473,728
Proposed dividend HERE 215,000
4,834,714

The notes on pages 77 to

statements.
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Notes:

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(i)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that
of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation
in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium
arising from the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies
Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and
the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of
their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the statutory
surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose
of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after
taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting standards. The
amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before profit distribution
to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant regulations, this reserve may
be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase the registered capital
of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and
the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note
2.2(a)).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s shares
through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment compensation.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.12.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FElaREwRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt eE FExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEYHEeRE
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations E (R, sz
REFHE 28 (a) (1,964,577) 1,247,855
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (Bf)/RE
ZEREFER (11,683) 27,286
Overseas tax paid BEAHEINE (118,595) (134,642
Net cash (used in)/generated from EESER (A /52
operating activities R4 %58 (2,094,855) 1,140,499
Cash flows from investing activities REESZHeRE
Interest received B 8 15,637 11,092
Purchase of property, plant and BEMXE  BENMEE
equipment (51,637) (175,551)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE
plant and equipment REEEHRIA 2,927 4,154
Investment in assoicates REE R ARIRE (255,485) (237,235)
Dividends received from associates Bk & A RIAR S 7,400 8,003
Net cash used in investing activities REFRDA RS IFE (281,158) (389,537)
Cash flows from financing activities BETB ESRE
Payment for the repurchase of shares BRI AR 153X (699) (1,644)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TEERERTSRIE 12,725 —
Proceeds from new bank loans I IRTTERTEHRIA 28 (b) 24,596,184 9,785,709
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 28 (b) (22,338,113) (11,161,194)
Payment for deferred shares RIE R D3R (9,569) (76,741)
Vesting of deferred shares RIER R /E 27,924 -
Interest paid BEAFE 28 (b) (204,861) (141,242)
Dividend paid BEARE (180,406) (180,350)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEESE ()
financing activities ZBReFE 1,903,185 (1,775,462)
Net decrease in cash and RekReFEYRDFHE
cash equivalents (472,828) (1,024,500)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—RAZzH2
LIBESEEY 1,980,026 3,233,727
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEETE R BB 2 o8 473,849 (229,201)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZzH&
KRG EEY 12 1,981,047 1,980,026

The notes on pages 77 to 171 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt %5 30 =& P &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (formerly known as VST Holdings Limited,
the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of Information Technology (“IT”)
products, provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and
IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance
and support services, as well as the provision of network security
hardware and software required for big data and cloud computing.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd Floor,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March
2018.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(*HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R 2% MY R (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 21 REEE (#)

78  VSTECS Holdings Limited

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values through profit or loss as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have effect on the financial statements and sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continueq) 21 REEE ()

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
None of these developments have had a material impact on the
accounting policies of the Group. However, additional disclosure
has been included in note 28(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R 2% MY R (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(@

80 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with note 2.8 depending on the nature of
the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.2(b)).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

—tEFFTZA=+—RLEE

2. FESTHBRBE»)

2.2

BREESERERLE —F

4= AN

I =] /\E E

(a)

B L E RIFERERE

(%)
FIERBERNEA M BN
RPN EDZANZY - B

%K’T%\%ﬁAEE%
oo AEEEEPHIEZER
BERreBEBaREGAHE
2 EBAKFI RBERNE
HBEREEMBABELIE
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ$”ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ
AZBEB SR - KB IEZER
Eﬁ%ﬁAZEM&gM#
BEAREZHEMEORE
IR TaEEHERENE2.8
REREHBRRAEKZ5 A5
BaE -

EAREE R E QRN EER
FREEHREENEZE
@A%ﬂ%%ﬁx%*ﬁ

b A ER T ZE
h&%%h%*Aﬁﬁﬁﬂ
X -ARmBEED 2 E
B HIAEHEEFELEM
AR T EERITFAA

ng

i

ERAEELAEH —FNBA
Bl ZEdlER 2 AKRA
ﬁﬁm%WE“ﬂm%%%
AT S EE TR E R
Wﬁmo&ﬁ%%ihﬁ
¥ E B TEZ A B A R R R
BrREEFEDIEAFEER
iM% e BEWAR AV L HERE
BEERZAFE(RKF
2.8) k(W@ )V HER
m%#“TiA# ¥mi
BRZRA(RHE2.2(b)) -

-t 81



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R 2% MY R (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continuea)

(@

82 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2.8).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@

84  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets are included in equity.

Annual Report 2017

2.

TEE

FTHERME»)

2.3 HNEB]RE

(a)

Mgk 2HEE
AEEETEEBNPT
RFFFIZIER  HUZESR
REMETELERRZE
BImeeE®¥ DetE - K
MBBRRIDAEBTLEY B
TRARAZHERZRE
e o

foiz %‘5

r

INERZIRZHERZ BT
EXHRERHEEE - It
EXGEENRRFHFAZ
ERMEUIINEFE TR
BERBBERELZERA
B ORESRAER -

FERPBEERABEBZR
HEBIRATERE 2 —
Mo - FEBYBEEREA
B FIRAFEIARRE
SRR B EREN AR
FREIARAFEAEBZ —
Mo -  FEBTBEE I
HEBEY AR -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(if) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 2.4 W% MERZ®E
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated ME  BERZBERKANRR
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure AT ERBEEBEIE KA
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. RREBEEEZEREGZRE -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or EEHEEABE 2 RAREERE
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is AeEERANEE - Bagrl i
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item FFEZEEZKRAR - Fe g
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured B2HRAFAEE ZEE 58K
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit MRAE—EBUYAE(NER) -
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. FTBEHEMEECRREEBR  HR

EEZVBAHTEEREAZE -

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of ME BERZXEBEEBEZHED
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual RARZEEE 2GR BE
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the (mB)E - REEZARERMEE
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful REHFGAERFH(ARESE
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have BE)VLNEREFTE - AMEEK
been adopted are summarised as follows: N oo FIEMZITEF R T
Leasehold improvements 20% or lease period whichever is shorter
THEMEERE 20% A E (AR & &%)
Buildings held for own use carried at cost 2% - 5%
LASIENFER AEF 2% - 5%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
REREE 20%
Office equipment 20%
N 20%
Computers 20%

B 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
P 20%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and BEZFHAGEERATEARAFHR
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. EHMEHRRTRAE(WER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated in note 2.4 above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)
2.6 Goodwill 2.6 BWE

Goodwill represents the excess of: BB TME 2HHEF

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration () FEEREHQTE - ®
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in WEREREERERN S
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously B RN B I AT IR
held equity interest in the acquiree; over Ffr BFRAEZHOATFEZE

D HBA

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and (i) WREFNKEBHRATE

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date. AHAEERBENFAFE
g o

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised B)VRR0)E - LEBLARIE

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase. HEPERAZEBREYE -

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. BB AR R REEET

Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each R - EXEBaettmEEZEAE» R

cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is ZEEHARKEMHNBRBEFRZ

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and BErERESEERSEEE N

is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7). WEFERBEAR(RWRT2.7) -

REFRALERSELASENR - B
On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any BABREBREG AT ESBEIRE
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the HHERBRMAEF -

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

investments in subsidiaries,
associates, a joint venture and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not available
for use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at least
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“cash generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of

90 VSTECS Holdings Limited

investments in subsidiaries,
associates, a joint venture and non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting”
in respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments

(@)

Financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for assets with maturities greater than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(@

02  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Financial assets (continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are subsequently recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses.

Dividend income or interest income from debt and equity
securities is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2.20.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset.

For debt and equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives
are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the
host contract and the embedded derivates are not closely
related, a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative, and the combined instrument is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value. When a derivative financial instrument is held
for trading, and is not designated in a qualifying hedge-
relationship, all changes in its fair value are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
Group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9

94  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables B REMERRIE

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect
of discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, RBekBReEEYRER fj K [
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and FRE RROLEMERMER
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible ZIEHE R LA K AT LA BE B 88 4R

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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96 VSTECS Holdings Limited

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ST BREME
(continued)
2.12 Share capital 212 B
Ordinary shares =Rl
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs THRRDEERER - TITHR

directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are presented as a deduction from total
equity.

Deferred reserve

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of the
Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation. The reserve is credited with the
amount of fair value of shares on granting to awardees, and the
related employment costs of the awarded shares are debited to
the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value of the
awarded shares and their costs of acquisition is transferred to
retained earnings.
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2.13 Trade and other payables 2.13 H fth FE S 5K IR
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and ESREMENRENLERF
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective BER EENEERNS XiRE
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be HAK AR E - B # MEBETET
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. K BRBCATI R -

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings 214 GTEEE

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair AERENSRAFEREMNRR
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial DATER - RFHERE - &

recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Annual Report 2017

BREEZBEKRASE  MY)ZT
HR 2 & fH g O (E 2 E e EA
ZHERTIMNENNERERAE
EEHEUNERANBERERR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E —ZE—+F+ - A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEEFTHRBE»

(continued)

2.15 Income tax 15 8%

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
assets are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)

2.15 Income tax (continued) 215 FR8# (&)

08 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of the reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(@)  Pension obligations
The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continueq)

(@)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement
of financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0
(continued)
2.16 Employee benefits (continued) 216 EERA (#)
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(d)  Share-based payments (continued)
During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding

adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture SELHE  URBERS
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate BrEEREHE  TEHE
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity REBELHERAE  HER
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amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).
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(e)  Deferred shares (e)
Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the
vesting condition (see note 2.12).

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities 217

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing

100 vVSTECS Holdings Limited

or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTTHERBE w0

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued) 218 E (&)

102 vSTECS Holdings Limited

(b)  Finance leases (continued) (b) ”ﬂ‘iﬁﬁﬁ (%)
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability Tﬁfﬁﬁ ,TK BELKBME
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate ;%? RzBEHE - AgtRE

on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments
is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
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leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life ¥ HBEREZEBEBREEE
of the asset and the lease term. Impairment losses are AFBEBERZENREE

accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2.7.
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2.19 Segment reporting 219 D ER¥R &
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item #® % DERERHBEHREANER Z

reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
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regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not EEEHE - Th ERIFFERZ L=
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority DEFA LMK 52 LE - Al
of these criteria. FEGE -
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the products
and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

(il Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv)  Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE T —+F+_A=+—HBHILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.22 Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H &= =&

—tEF+t A=+ —HLFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

106 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (‘US$”), the Singapore
Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah
(“RP”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with a net notional amount
of approximately HK$320,128,000 (2016: approximately
HK$255,265,000).

A 5% strengthening of the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities against
the HK$ at 31 December 2017 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the Group by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis as
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 # & =%

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

(@

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. B 7% & B

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

—tEFFTZA=+—RLEE

EERQFVE

(%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) IR EZE2)
Foreign exchange risk (continued) (a) SMERBR (&)
Group
AEH
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
RMB ARE 45,258 24,153
uss$ ETT (61,046) (55,104)
S$ Frhnsg T 13,172 6,386
THB BTN 18,371 22,418
RP EE 7,542 19,061
A 5% weakening of the above currencies against the MEBEETRBESYS (R
HK$ would have had the equal but opposite effect on ﬁﬁ*ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ“ BHRBFITIE) B
the above currencies, on the basis that all other variables HrEBEASEREER
remain constant. LB o
Interest rate risk (b) FI == =
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are AEEZHRARKEERES M

substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details
of which have been disclosed in note 12. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in note 18. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2017, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$55,921,000 (2016:
HK$35,572,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(©)

108 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The exposures to these credit risks are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis by established credit
policies and procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. The Group’s historical loss
experience in collection of trade receivables falls within
the recorded allowances.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

Annual Report 2017
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(continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MERAKBEERKQF¥E
(%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 i EEEZE )
Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RENMERRR(EZ)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EEEREHARE S RE X E
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and cash ERAKREFBRHELERBE(B
and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash AR BENARE S MR
flows. The table below analyses the Group’s financial SEZEEBEY) 2EHFEERER - T
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the ETNERREHBEALHT
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual HAZH THEIHEAR
maturity date. R EAR 2 AR A
f& o
Lessthan1  Between1and Between 2 and
Total year 2 years Syears  After 5 years
fit 1 -FEMF MEELE BRILE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn
Group 50
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t&+t-A=t-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 6,790,603 6,790,603 = = =
Finance lease liabilities HEHEERE 1,389 631 501 257 =
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 8,994,783 8,994,783 = = =
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZR=+-8
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,382,081 2,474,111 - 1,907,970 -
Finance lease liabilities RERERR 1,206 482 423 301 -
Trade and other payables B RAMERTE 8,098,508 8,098,508 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MERAKBEERKQF¥E

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

(%)

EXRERET

AEBERERAZBNRERAE
SEBERNIFERZE  UARKRER
MO H LR HEMBEDEREMRF
@ URERREERARBIUR
EERKA -

REFIABEARARBE K%

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return B eRfABRNTFHREZEKES
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to 2 mREEEERN  BRITHRK

reduce debt.

D EERIE -

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity NEBIRGER EEE R R
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. REN o 52 b R EEFEB U
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and ERERTE  ERFHEIRBES
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement (BREEAMBHR AT ZRE
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is LIERBEE) RS RESEE
calculated as shown in the consolidated statement of financial Mt E o HRIREATBRRAE
position. FiRETHE

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31

December 2017:

TEAMARBR-T—t &+
—ASt—BZAREM -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Total borrowings (Note 18) BB (MiF18) 6,642,560 4,245,041
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B R RS EEY

(Note 12) (Hfez12) (1,981,047) (1,980,026)

Net debt B FE 4,661,513 2,265,015

Total equity HARERS 4,834,714 3,863,638

Net debt/equity ratio (U Y Tado 0.96 0.59
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

U)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 183 “Fair value measurement”. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data is not available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

U)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

BEEEERQFE
(%)

3.3 A FEMEF @)
i) NUNAFEFEz&HIA
(4)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-EBR F-EBR HFZER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FAT FAT FAT FAT

At 31 December 2017 R-S—+&

+=—A=+—H
Assets 5=
Forward foreign exchange contracts EAEINES 4 - 104,910 - 104,910
Listed securities FES 133,324 = - 133,324
Liabilities af&
Derivative liabilities PTEAR - 5,846 - 5,846
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XREF

+=A=+-H
Assets 5=
Derivative assets PTHEEE - 4,256 - 4,256
Forward foreign exchange contracts EAIINES A - 44,780 — 44,780
Listed securities EhESE 138,697 - - 138,697
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, REBEE-_ZE—tFR_ZT—XF
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value +ZA=+—HLEFER 2F
hierarchy. BEH s B EETEMER o

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the contractual
forward price and deducting the current spot rate. The
discount rate used is derived from the relevant government
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus
an adequate constant credit spread. The fair value of
derivative instruments in Level 2 is based on broker quotes
taking into account adjustments to reflect the credit risk
of the Group entity and counterparty when appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &&= - =

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

4,

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i)~ Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts given
the liquid and short-term nature.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs of inventories are recorded to the extent where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables.
Provisions are applied to trade receivables to the extent where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in
the period in which such estimates are changed.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. B 7% & B

(%)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

—tEFFTZA=+—RLEE

EERQFVE

3.3 A {EME &)

(a)

BEERERARLE

B R

(i) PASERFEF AR Z 8
BENBEZRAYE
HRARBEE REE K
E MBS Rk HEMERRK
B BHekReEEY B
SHREMEMNREBLREE
ZRAVEDBREKRESH
HE -

#

st FE MR 2 7 23R
FE

AEERBEFEAERE MG
MRFEEA R FE - HHR
BREBESRAIREAEER 2 F
HRBEAES - RIS BRI
FEMB LR -

A B OB 7B & B A B R AT o f
BHANRREMGS  AAHE
BERYERMGFLRAZIHRZ
FEREENRTFEMR

i 5F & 5 I WK
B fm

AEBERBEHE S R FHIET I
Bl 55 2 ¥ (4 5t B 5 8 4R IE R
BEFLEE - HWORBRIAERE
BRAREEIREZEHRBRE
g AlE i AR E SRR
REHBE -

(QED R

B E 5 e WK IR R B A E R
B fbat - MIEBBEIREE M
?r AlEEERSFERMGH

REHHMcEHRKKBERE
BENEEESE -

—z—+a5x 113



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

()

114 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective
and judgements are based on the Group’s experience and
knowledge of operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in business and
economic conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

5. MI% - RERKRE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Buildings
held for own
Leasehold use carried Furniture and Office Motor  Assets under
improvements at cost fixtures equipment Computers vehicles  construction Total
RRAFIER
HEVEEE REARETF BARKE BAERE B RE HREE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET FET TET FET FET
As at 1 January 2016 RZF-~F—F-H
Cost D% 30,657 249,280 16,027 11,466 37,868 9,991 848 356,137
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (19,126) (12,696) (5,896) (8,398) (17,797) (5,126) - (69,039)
Net book amount BEFE 11,631 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-Z—AF+=A
=+—BIEFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 11,5631 236,584 10,131 3,068 20,071 4,865 848 287,098
Additions HE 9,465 — 1,457 852 8,267 1,079 1,708 22,828
Transfer 4 — — 1,365 — 315 — (1,680) —
Disposals HE (267) — (2,849 (230) (382) (472) — (4,200)
Depreciation e (3,789 (5,026) (2,683) (1,230) (7,846) (1,095) - (21,669)
Exchange difference EHER (3,885) (144) 99 (25) (566) 812 (40) (3,749)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308
As at 31 December 2016 and ~ R=Z—7~F+=A
1 January 2017 ST-BRIZtF
—A—-B
Cost A 35,753 249,027 13,137 11,019 39,386 10,772 836 359,930
Accumulated depreciation Esi (22,698) (17,613) (5,617) (8,584) (19,527) (5,583) = (79,622)
Net book amount REFE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+-H
=T—RIEEE
Opening net book amount EREEE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308
Additions HE 5,628 178,542 2,910 5,410 3,971 4,774 3,125 204,360
Transfer E1 - - 158 - 102 - (260) -
Disposals HE (56) - (2,279) (20) (1,185) (395) (23) (3,958)
Depreciation & (5,077) (10,451) (2,261) (1,326) (7,112) (2,397) - (28,624)
Exchange difference EHER 800 7,422 652 300 1,847 7 258 11,286
Closing net book amount FREEFHE 14,350 406,927 6,700 6,799 17,482 7,178 3,936 463,372
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A
=+-A
Cost B 43,121 435,572 11,609 16,335 34,054 12,059 3,936 556,686
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (28,771) (28,645) (4,909) (9,536) (16,572) (4,881) = (93,314)
Net book amount BEFE 14,350 406,927 6,700 6,799 17,482 7,178 3,936 463,372

The net book value of property, plant and equipment under
finance leases as at 31 December 2017 was HK$1,758,000 (2016:

HK$1,447,000).

BEABEATWE BEREBR
SE—tF+ A=t —BZEEF

8 51,758,000 (==

1,447,000 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

6. Goodwill 6. BE

I

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHIT

Goodwill [EES 322,995 306,905
As at 1 January n—H—H 306,905 310,592
Exchange difference PEH Z%E 16,090 (3,687)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 322,995 306,905

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs”) to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis
of assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections range from 5.1% to 10% (2016: 4.9% to
10%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rates as at 31 December 2017 which range
from 6.35% to 12.8% (2016: 5.9% to 12.4%) were applied in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount
rates used reflect the risk-free rates and the premiums for
specific risks relating to the business units to which the CGUs
relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount
of goodwill.

116 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017

DEFECSERSEES U 2T
@ﬁﬁgﬁzﬁfﬁfﬂﬁu‘l‘ EETE © BRE
t aﬁLﬂZﬁimu%ﬂ‘E B T AR 15 4R I

MhizBEmETEEET - 54
ﬁﬁ?ﬂiﬁuu‘t S FAEBEEMACEE
REBE

(a) BHenEREERLEEELT
FEBEEIEA -

(b) BERBEMETEN BN K S
FEEENTE51%E10% (ZF
—NF 1 4.9%E10%) °

(c) RZT—+F+=ZA=+—H
Z B ERTEEIR RN F6.35% &
12.8% ( = & — /\5-5.9%i
12.4%) ERAREERESELESE
TzA KB ES%E - MAMEER
MEBERBNERREEELES
NABRIEBEMN 2 B ERRIGEE -

EERTEBREAZEEREEREY
BABZERKBE 25 - DIRER
SMERRR - BERBR(ELBE) REY
MHEERZAHREH -

AREBEEEHEE  FEMZ FHRFE
F“¢A@T EREZEE - TAA
REEHTRESEARBEATEERERS

.

% o



Investments in Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

P 75 R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

7. RBRARIZRE

RZE—+F+_A=+T—HZXEW

as follows: BRARIZHBOAT
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
i) A BRTRAE FEEEEDT
18 FR L it B TEEBRKE LR AMERFE HiE B
(Hisz)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
VST Group Limited RBRAEE REFR ZBEXES 4BREREEBE1ETZ
TR
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. products in the PRC
FINEMCEEETARAR A+ KRB HERRHRER  AR#100,000,0007T
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited products in
Hong Kong
BHBK(EE)ERQT] Bk REBDHEMBMRER 2REBEK
62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
62,000,000/% FE 1% 2=
R
Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT US$20,000,000 — 100%
Technology Development products in the PRC
Co., Ltd
ERRCRARNSEER H RABESHEMBHRES  20,000,000% 7T
BRAF
ARECERNEEERAF  PRC Project investment RMB30,000,000 — 100%
in the PRC
FERELCERRARAR  fEH RPBEEEEBEERE AR #30,000,0007T

BUEERERBRLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

P

B RAR ZRE (#)

W-Z—tF+-A=+—AZEEMH
SAF Y HENT ()

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continuea) 7.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

as follows: (continued) 5
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRAR FsERE I
HHE FX L3t 2 TEXBREEBE HMEARFE HiE Lk
(Hiat)
R ERE 4R PRC Project holding RMB2,500,000 — 100%
BRAF in the PRC
R E R R R g RABERERERE AR#2,500,0007T
BRAF
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding 446,036,800 ordinary 100% -
and distribution of IT shares
products, provision
of IT services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
EARRBRAT I R FIREER « 446,036,800/ LAk
DHEMBHRER -
REEABBRS &
PEER
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred shares, - 99.90%
(Thailand) Co., Ltd in Thailand non-accumulative
dividend, Baht 1.25
per share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings RE RREREHREER 196,000/ &R E1E1.25%

(Thailand) Co., Ltd
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Notes to the Financial

Statements (continued)

P 75 R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RE 2T

ZRE #)

RZE—+F+_A=+T—HZXEW

BRARZFRWAT

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

(%)

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRA FEERBSE
HE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBREE M M ERFE HiE SE2
(M)
VST ECS (Thailand) Thailand Provider of IT products 7,783,000 shares of — 100%
Co., Ltd and services for 10 Baht each
IT infrastructure
in Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) RE REIEMBRERRER 7,783,000 BREE
Co., Ltd RHR B R R B AR 10REk 2 i1
HER
ECS Value Myanmar Myanmar Provision of marketing 300,000 shares of — 100%
Services Company research and IT US$1 each
Limited services in Myanmar
ECS Value Myanmar e PAERETISHEMT 300,000 SRAEIETZ
Services Company KB AR R &5
Limited
ECS Value (Cambodia) Cambodia Import and export of IT KHR20,000,000 — 100%
Co., Ltd. products in Cambodia
ECS Value (Cambodia) SR RERIBRIEFE AR 20,000,0003R ¥ 285
Co., Ltd. EmEDD
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of IT products 18,600,000 ordinary — 100%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd and services for shares of S$1 each
IT infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Computers #hns BN & AR ER R 13,600,000/ F A% E &
(Asia) Pte. Ltd BB B 2R e AR S 1R TT 2 AR
HER
muExpRARLas —z-+r55% 119



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R 2% MY R (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H &= =&

—tEF+t A=+ —HLFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Principal activities and

7. RNB AR Z2RE =)

— =

Ht

%

BRRZFBOT (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

—tFFT A=+ -HZEEN

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR BRITRE FEERBSE
HE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBREE M HEMERFE HiE SE2
(Hizt)
Pacific City (Asia Pacific)  Singapore Retail of IT products, 150,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Pte Ltd IT equipment and of S$1 each
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) ¥ hl# PRI B AR 150,000/ G AR E (&
Pte Ltd -~ BARHRE N 1IN T 2 R
EHZEE
Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products 5,000,000 ordinary shares — 100%
and services for of S$1 each
[T infrastructure in
Singapore
Exeed Pte Ltd 0 PRI 5 86 B AR 5,000,00002 & AR E &
EmR =AM 1T TT 2 Ak
B2 e AR 75
ECS Technology (China)  Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited provider of IT products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
ERRE(PEDARRAR  FE REBRFRETRAK 11,500,000 & i A%
BRHRERREME
FER R RIS AL e
ECS Chongaing PRC Electronic settlement US$70,000,000 — 100%
Marketing & Payment business centre and
Co., Ltd provider of IT products
and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
EFF?WJL SR I HEEFEERBFOR 70,000,000 7T
BRA B AR E m B F LR
REW R RIS HER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R 2R B 5E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueo) 7. RMBARZRE @)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are RZZE—+tF+_A=+—"HZEEMH
as follows: (continued) BRARIZFEBWOT (&)
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AR, BRITRAR FsgEEE It
a8 BR AL ith 26 FTEEBRKE I SMERFE HiE SFE2
(Hiat)
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of IT products 10 ordinary shares — 100%
Co., Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
BERBERBRARRAA B ERBEARBREMREN 10T EK
RHR B R B AR
HrEm
ECS Computers (HK) Hong Kong Provider of IT products 1 ordinary share — 100%
Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
ERBM(EB)ERRE BE EREARBREMREN 1REBER
RHE BB R AR
HIEm
ECS Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$1,282,000 — 100%
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
BN EAREE R FE HEIEABHEERRERM  1,282,000% T
BRAF RHEEW R iR
HER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R 2% MY R (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries ontinued) 7. RHBARZRE w
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are RZZE—tF+_A=+—"HZEEMH
as follows: (continued) BRARIZFEBWOT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
ML BRITRAR FsgEEE It
HHE BR AL ith 26 FTEEBRKE I HMEARFE HiE SFE2
(Hiat)
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of IT products US$25,000,000 — 100%
Management Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
EE(LB)ERBERRA  HE hEEMR S EMRREM  25,000,000%E7T
R AT R b AR 75
IR
ECS China Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$15,000,000 — 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
ERRHR(ER8)BRAR  HE B BB AR N EM 15,000,000 7T
RHR B R AR
HER
ECS Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$10,000,000 — 100%
(Guangzhou) and services for IT
Company Limited infrastructure
in the PRC
BEMERRHRARAF] e TEEHARHRAERNEM  10,000,000%7T
RHE A R R
HER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R 2R B 5E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are

as follows: (continued)

7. RMB AR Z2’RE )

RZE—+F+_A=+T—HZXEW
BRRZFBHOT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AR, BRITRAR FsgEEE It
a8 BR AL ith 26 FTEEBRKE I SMERFE HiE SFE2
(Hiat)
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of IT products 2,000,000 and 24,785 — 100%
in Singapore ordinary shares
of S$1 and
US$1.8156 each
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd N N A SRR 2,000,000 £ 24,7850%
DA RS RIEE 1N T
K1.8156%% T2 ik
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of IT products 100,000 ordinary shares — 100%
in Indonesia of US$1 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya Efe EEAMBHRER DA 100,0008 &R EE1RTZ
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of — 100%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore S$1 each
ECS Infocom (Phils) s F IR BB R R R EEA I INE T
Pte. Ltd Rk
Note: et -

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in

the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BRPBEKIZHBARRIIEBEE R
S TEMBARBAEREMERHA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

8. Interests in Associates 8. REt&E N ER
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Unlisted LT

Share of net assets DFEE 612,948 310,904
Loan to an associate BTHBERNTINER 3,510 3,489
616,458 314,393

Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIMBE LN
Share of net assets DFEE 251,780 215,553
868,238 529,946
Market value of listed shares RO TE 173,769 178,744
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BRYBERAIMERNANETE A
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. mIER  2ERBEHTER —FARK

@ -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R 2R B 5E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Interests in Associates (continueq) 8. REtE RTINS =)
Details of the associates as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: RZE—+FF+_A=Z+—HBZHER

AT

Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by the
Name incorporation Principal activities  shares held Group
H8 MR ZER FTEEH B RITROFE rEBFfBZRE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZ—XRF
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc Philippines Distribution of IT 3,097,055 49.99% 49.99%
products ordinary shares of
Peso 100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc FREE DEEMERE® 3,097,055/ TR E &
1008 R 2 E Bk
ECS ICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of 180,000,000 1% 41%
information ordinary shares of
technology and RMO0.5 each
services for IT
infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECS ICT Berhad B RM R 5 K PG5 & F L EHRE 180,000,000/%
BRIRHEMBR & BREENSSTE
PR 7% Rk
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. RE BB R 196,000f% FAXE{E100
TRz R
APAL Holdings Limited Cayman lIslands Aviation leasing 300,000,000 25.95% 25.95%
ordinary shares of
US$0.1 each
APALIERBIR A7 k=i RIS 300,000,000% &A%
EE0.1ETLZ
R
VSTAM Technology PRC Investment RMB500,000,000 45% -
Development Limited management
services in the PRC
BREEIRRERARLNE PH RPBEERE AR#500,000,0007T
IR RS
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B 3% R AR B A (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

. . pon — a2z L
8. Interests in Associates (continueq) 8. REtENTIMNER =
None of the associates were considered individually material to the MaEsE AR ERNmERREABEHAE
Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the consolidated BEKX ZEHFEVBRERP A
financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate financial information ERNAICBREHSBREXER - A&
(the Group’s share) of these associates is as follows: DIEZEBRE LRI BB BER D
™~
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Profit from continuing operations B & T 48,528 36,108
Other comprehensive income Hin2mBA 41,679 (13,199)
Total comprehensive income ERCIL N L 90,207 22,909
. . s AL Al a2z
9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELENER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Share of net assets DMEFEE 43,844 48,470
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: R-EBE—++F+-"HA=+—HZA%0D
EHBWT
Particulars of
Country of registered and Equity interest
Name establishment  Principal activities paid-in capital held by the Group
28 RYBER TEEEK ARk EHERFEE FrEEfEZRE

2017 2016

Bt Z—TRE

Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%

Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of

smartphones and computer
peripheral product
SNHEBERMRAR  F ME  EEREEERFHRE  AR155,000,0007T
NG BiKEEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

. . A pog A A 173 a2 N
Interest in a Joint Venture (continueq 9. REELENER @
Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint SMNHIEBREERIERATALAEHR
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered SHEBE 2 E——HAELE  LTH
material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of BRHAEERBEKR - AEEHEZE
this joint venture is as follows: EhEZHBERDT ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss from continuing operations FEL L E1E (5,509) (5,927)
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 ERA 883 (815)
Total comprehensive income ERABE (4,626) (6,742)
H =
Trade and Other Receivables 10, EZ REMEWRKIE
2017 2016
—E2—tF —F—-R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade receivables, net B SRR IE R 5E 10,833,758 8,237,903
Other receivables and prepayments H At FEUGRIE TR 3R IR 1,776,376 1,123,639
Deferred expenses (Note 16 (d)) RIER S (M1FF16(d)) 11,156 10,875
12,621,290 9,372,417
Less: Non-current deferred expenses B IEARHRIRIER S,
(Note 16 (d)) (Hiz16(d)) (5,145) (4,792)
12,616,145 9,367,625
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables (continueq)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date

10.

SR EH M EWFIE @)

SERTE=ZNEPZEEHNTF7
1600 MEEFFPZEEHART
FEAEETZZFE NN RL BT

R -BZRURBBFEREZAHNE D

bl

OB

is as follows: ZEREBROMMT
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
0 — 30 days 0230H 5,643,681 4,206,581
31 - 60 days 31260H 3,212,853 2,530,711
61 — 90 days 61290H 800,841 731,820
Over 90 days B39O0 H 1,176,383 768,791
10,833,758 8,237,903

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$1,628,712,000
(2016: HK$1,607,675,000), which were fully performing, were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables by due date is as follows:

W_E—+F+_A=+—H E2&%
BT B S EWFHIE,628,712,000%8
T(ZF—7X4%F :1,607,675,000 7T)
E@BERRE - ZSEREERSZZE L
REFEB  BELEAHEOLE - %
EZEFRRFBIRINBEE D ZHRER D
I/

2017 2016

—g—tf  —FTAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR T

0 - 30 days 0%30H 1,076,622 1,220,506
31 - 60 days 31£60H 231,901 184,977
61 - 90 days 61%290H 112,765 61,976
Over 90 days @0 H 207,424 140,216
1,628,712 1,607,675
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R 2R B 5E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

. v} E =

10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 10.EZ R H M EWRIE
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$401,725,000 (2016: RZE—tF+ZA=+—0  BIE

HK$288,425,000) were impaired and full provision has been made. W s IE401,725,0008 L ( — T — /N 4F:
The ageing analysis of these receivables by invoice date is as follows: 288,425,000 L) 2R E  WE T
TEREBE  RERUFIBREZAHE

DZERESTWT
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—X

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHIT
31 - 60 days 31£260H 4,295 -
61 — 90 days 61£290H 24,652 6,399
Over 90 days HBiB90H 372,778 282,026
401,725 288,425

Movements of the provision for trade receivables are as follows: BHRERWHIBRE 2 ZEHMT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF TE-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 288,425 254,184
Net provision and receivable written off B R B M IR IE R R 107,591 45,149
Exchange difference i H 2R 5,709 (10,908
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—8H 401,725 288,425

All of the above provision relates to trade receivables that were
individually determined to be impaired.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties have not
had significant defaults in the past.

P Lt B4 10 B AR B B & 8RR
BzESEERAGRE -

BRHSRBECE S R EMERKIAZ
FEEERDNZEHRTZBEERNETE
B REHRTEELESETKRE
# e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

. [=v:] =h =
10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 10, EZREMEWRIE )
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated B REMEBRFBEEREN T EE
in the following currencies: FHE -
2017 2016
—ZT—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
HK$ BT 131,576 16,822
RMB AR 9,111,869 6,821,551
US$ ET 1,042,986 912,978
S$ AN TT 550,164 346,630
THB R 989,749 777,626
RP EEFE 789,801 492,018
12,616,145 9,367,625
As at 31 December 2017, included in other receivables and prepayments RZEBE—tEF+ZA=+—0 AH
was an amount of HK$229,707,000 (2016: HK$43,519,000) fib & W FX T K FB N FRIE 229,707,000
representing investments in unlisted equity interests which are carried B (= Z — X F 43,519,000 %8
at cost and investments in listed securities of HK$133,324,000 (2016: L) TR ASIRZIFLTRERE
HK$138,697,000) which are carried at fair value through profit or loss. M AFEIIAERZEZ ETMEHFE
% 133,324,000 t( =& — XN F ¢
138,697,000 1) °
As at 31 December 2016, an amount of HK$4,256,000, which is RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—8 Bt A
included in other receivables, is related to derivative assets. Hfth fE U FRIE 2 £ %H4,256,000 7% T 6
PTHEBEMRRA -
As at 31 December 2016, included in prepayments of the Group is RZE—R"F+_A=+—RH  #f
an amount of HK$152,723,000 which related to property acquisition ZEWBEHEBEZ£% 152,723,000
in the PRC. TEFFAREE 2 FERFHIE -
. F—2
11. Inventories M"M.78
2017 2016
—E—+F =X
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BAEHEEFETE 3,909,090 3,038,330
Inventories-in-transit EEhEE 354,609 669,960
4,263,699 3,708,290

BRRRAXZFESBEZOMERNME
21 e

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
is shown in note 21.
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12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

P 75 R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

12 BERBEEEY

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FA&T

Cash at bank and in hand BITREFRS 1,979,365 1,973,420

Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) MHIRITTE R (M5t (a)) 1,682 6,606

Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 1,981,047 1,980,026

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated RekBcESEYEREENATIEE

in the following currencies: 1’ :

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT

HK$ BT 59,037 58,300

RMB (Note (b)) AR (HfiEb)) 1,405,698 1,265,391

us$ ET 345,649 479,841

S$ N T 110,951 141,784

THB ER37S 10,084 15,636

RP HNERE 49,628 19,074

1,981,047 1,980,026

Notes: Wiz -

(a) The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was (a) GHRITFERCERFMNERE0A1%(Z
0.1% (2016: 0.1%) per annum. These deposits have an T—RF 101%) c ZETFARZFHE
average maturity of 15 days (2016: 11 days). HERA15B(ZE—XRF :118)

(b) The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in (b) AEBUARBHEZRITEHET

RMB are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion
of these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to
prevailing rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the government of the PRC.

B RR B ZRIT - LMZEIN
ARBFEZHEBRINERBESE
e B R T B U PR 2 AT
SN & 5 B B R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

13. Share Capital 13. R
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT
Authorised: SETE
2,000,000,000 (2016: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000% (== — /X4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,0008% ) &% E1E
018 L2 LBk 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EETRBREEBRR :
2017 2016
“E—tF —T-RF
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
SRMEE1ET SREECAET
ZERT ZEET
BBERYA HfE ERElE = A
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T TAT
At 1 January n—A—H 1,454,403,998 145,440 1,455,355,998 145,536
Share options exercised BT B
(Note (a)) (H5ta)) 5,780,000 578 - -
Repurchase of own shares BEAF R
(Note (b)) (Histb) (320,000) (32) (952,000) (96)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 1,459,863,998 145,986  1,454,403,998 145,440
Notes: Mtat -
(@)  Shares issued under share option scheme (a) IREBEERERTSEITRG
During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 5,780,000 FR - BREETENUNRKE
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$12,725,000 12,725,000 & 7T R B & 24 A
of which HK$578,000 was credited to share capital and HK$18,288,000 5,780,000 L imAk - 578,000/
(including HK$6,14 1,000 transferred from the capital reserve to the share JLEF ARRA -+ 18,288,000/ T 8 &
premium account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in AR EER - &R 816,141,000
note 2.16(d)) were credited to the share premium account. TTERBWE2.16(d) T 2 T B &K

WERFRERERMEER -

Number of

Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued  Consideration share capital premium reserve
REBRESHBTROZAG BT EBRYUA RE FARK RO EE BAGE
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS

BT BT BT BT

March 2017 240,000 534,000 24,000 791,000 281,000
May 2017 240,000 534,000 24,000 791,000 281,000
October 2017 2,620,000 5,776,000 262,000 8,263,000 2,749,000
November 2017 ZE—+F+-A 2,040,000 4,456,000 204,000 6,421,000 2,169,000
December 2017 ZZ—+tE+ZA 640,000 1,425,000 64,000 2,022,000 661,000
5,780,000 12,725,000 578,000 18,288,000 6,141,000
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13. Share Capltal (continued)

(o)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

—tEFFTZA=+—RLEE

13. RA& (2

Repurchase of own shares (b)  EBREIAHED
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased RBE-ZT—tF+ZA=+—H1
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FE  ARABRBXABEALRSR
BT -
Number of
ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate
shares price paid price paid purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid
BEzAG BOEEREE ENERBESER ENAESRBREER SARBEER
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT
August 2017 —E—+tFN\A 320,000 2.20 2.16 698,800
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased REBEE-Z-—R"F+A=+—BLEFE -
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: ARARRBRAABEERSROIT :
Number of
ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate
shares price paid price paid purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid
iBEZ A5 BREBERBE ENERESER SASRBEER SAEBEER
HKS$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT
March 2016 —E—-XF=A 200,000 1.66 1.64 330,000
April 2016 —ET—-XFNA 718,000 1.76 1.72 1,247,140
August 2016 —ET—-X"FN\A 34,000 1.95 1.95 66,300
952,000 1,643,440
The repurchased shares during the years ended 31 December 2017 and RBEZT—tFRZT-—R"F+=

2016 were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.

Deferred shares

The Company acquired, through a trust setup specifically for purpose of
employment compensation, a total of 3,356,000 ordinary shares of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 34,318,000)
from the open market for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$9,569,000 (2016: HK$76,741,000). These shares would be used
primarily for providing employment/executive compensation of the Group.
The costs of acquisition of shares were recognised in the “Deferred
reserve” in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

During the year, 10,718,000 deferred shares with a total value of
approximately HK$27,924,000 were vested and transferred to all eligible
employees. There was no deferred shares granted and vested for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BUEERERBRLF

A=+ —-BLFEZEERROD R
o ANARAB 22 H#ITRAENE
ZER M ZEE

IR KE P& 1)

REZE=ZZF— tEJr:HEJrf
IEFE KRB EBEFEHAIRE
%Wéﬁﬁ = E’\ Fmis LB A
& /\3356000%(:; —/\E-
34,318,000 8% ) & [
REHELN H9,569, ooo/’ém( = —
JNEE 76,741,000 7T) o s SR
TEARRBHEAEEZER THRE
B - WERDZERARNGREERE
%&%(@Lﬁfﬁjm%wu °©

H

= I

F RN 4 {E 4 27,924,000 T 2
10,718,000 IEER N E FHE I &2
FHEAERER - BEZ-ZZT—F
Jr*H_Jr AEFETEDRLER
BEZIELERG -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

13. Share Capltal (continued)

(d)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the
reporting period

13. RA& (2

P3RS B R R B B R R 178 2 B AR
F 5

Exercise price 2017 2016

Exercise period 1TEH THEE ZZ2—tF ZE—XKF

17 February 2013 to —ET-=F-A+tHZE HK$2.227 5,760,000 11,760,000
16 February 2021 —E-—F-A+"H 2227 7T

23 March 2013 to —E—=F=-A=Z+=A% HK$2.028 4,180,000 4,920,000
22 March 2021 —E-—%=ZA=+=H 2.028% T

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of
the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the new share option scheme may
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and
(iii) the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The vesting period of the options from the date of
grant is determined by the Directors and the options are then
exercisable within a period of ten years including the vesting
period, if any. Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments (ontinued)

(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

No share options were granted under the New Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows,
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of
shares for the year ended 31 December 2017:

14U T e EEZEE

FRIE (%)

(a) A= REBRAE S (2
RBE-F-AER-F— %
+ZASt-RLEE  BER
T T 858 1 R ARE o

(i) WUTAEDLZERRZMES

B - RE

E-F

—L

“RA=+—BLEE &
BREG AR XA 4

sty

7%_ :
Outstanding Outstanding  Exercisable
as at Lapsed Exercised as at as at Exercise Contractual Remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
2017 the year the year 2017 2017 (HKS) conditions options life
R-B-tf REB-tF  RoR-tF
-A-A tZA=t-B tZA=t+-B %8 IR b
Date of grant REEH HATTE EREN FRfTE HALTE AFTE (%) BRAH ARER AHEH
23 March 2011 e e 4,920,000 - (740,000) 4,180,000 4,180,000 2028 2 Years from 10 Years 3.23 Years
date of grant
ARHAH 105 3235
Ritof
17 February 2011 “F——%ZAt+A 11,760,000 (960,000 (5,040,000) 5,760,000 5,760,000 2.221 2 Years from 10Years  3.14 Years
date of grant
BRHEH 10§ 3145
bk
16,680,000 (960,000 (5,780,000) 9,940,000 9,940,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during 2017 was HK$2.14.

ST R AER T A

HiZ g FH(E /2148 T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE T —+F+_A=+—HBHILFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments contives)  14. L,L BoOXzERGEE
MIH @)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) (a) ANATEIERESTE )
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (i) ATABREZGERREHE
Outstanding
as at
1 January Exercisable
2016 and as at Exercise Contractual Remaining
31 December 31 December price Vesting term of contractual
2016 2016 (HKS) conditions options life
RZE—F
—A—BR
E2-RF RZZE—F
TZA=t-8B +ZA=t+-H i B il
Date of grant BiAH HATTHE BNt (%) BB AHNES ANEH
23 March 2011 —Z——%zZA-+=H 4,920,000 4,920,000 2.028 2 Years from 10 Years 4.23 Years
date of grant
ERLER 104 423%
fibpia
17 February 2011 —Z——%-A++H 11,760,000 11,760,000 2,207 2 Years from 10 Years 414 Years
date of grant
BRHAH 105 4148
it

16,680,000 16,680,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E —ZE—+F+ - A=+—HILFE

15. R A%

AEEGARAETERBD 2FVRF
REHZHEENGARaEH R -

15. Reserves of the Company

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each

component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:

A A E Bl 4w AR AR AR 0 E BT BB E
BzENERFREG2FHBEHINT :

Capital
Share redemption Capital Deferred  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
EXEE
B EE f#E EXfEE ELERE REEFR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TET TET TERT
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Ki:z) (Hi:z) (Hi:z) (Hr:z)
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE—RF
—A—HZ#&H 835,465 7,116 18,870 - (245,853) 615,598
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNEEZERA
income for the year BE - - - - 552,761 552,761
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - (180,350) (180,350
Deferred share EER D - - - (76,741) - (76,741)
Repurchase of own shares BREARH KR
- Premium paid —BEE - - - - (1,548) (1,548)
— Transfer between reserves —RERER - 96 - - (96) -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 R -Z—~F+_ A
St-Br& 835,465 7,212 18870  (76,741) 124914 909,720
Balance at 1 January 2017 —t5F
—A—B# 835,465 7,212 18,870 (76,741) 124,914 909,720
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZERA
income for the year B - - - - (6,380) (6,380)
Dividend paid BARE - - - - (180,406)  (180,406)
Deferred share purchased ERBERTERD - - - (9,569) - (9,569)
Vesting of deferred shares ELERNBE = = = 27,924 = 27,924
Share options exercised BT iR iE 18,288 = (6,141) = = 12,147
Share options lasped BRuZ BRE - = (1,125) = 1,125 =
Repurchase of own shares BEAFRR
— Premium paid -BiaE - - - - (667) (667)
- Transfer between reserves —REREE - 32 = = (32) =
Balance as at 31 December 2017 —t%+=H
= t—Hz&EH% 853,753 7,244 11,604 (58,386) (61,446) 752,769
Note: ft e -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature FRBH MEERBN  FRESERSED

and purpose of reserves.

R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

16. Trade and Other Payables

16. EZ RHEMENFE

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 7,910,341 7,430,552
Other payables and accruals oAt S FRIB M T FR IR 1,077,936 660,859
Deferred income (Note (d)) EIEW A (B 5t () 13,327 13,336
9,001,604 8,104,747

Less: non-current deferred income (Note (d)) B FEARERIESEU A (B2t () (6,821) (6,239)
8,994,783 8,098,508

138 VSTECS Holdings Limited

The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to (a)
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables

by invoice date is as follows:

AEBzHEBRNASEERLZ
EEBNFI0E90H - EFEN
REREZAHRE D 2BRE DN
m

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FHET FHET

0 - 60 days 0£60H 7,812,862 7,321,814

Over 60 days @60 H 97,479 108,738

7,910,341 7,430,552

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were (b) BEZREMEMNZTBEBEREENLT
denominated in the following currencies: JIEHEHE

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FHET

HKS$ BT 32,140 22,490

RMB AR 5,164,281 3,986,032

us$ E 2,574,845 3,286,401

S$ T 295,868 246,141

THB Tk 326,510 273,633

RP HE&E 601,139 283,811

8,994,783 8,098,508

Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

16. Trade and Other Payables (ontinueq)

17.

()

Included in other payables and accruals is an amount
HK$104,910,000 (2016: HK$47,780,000) which relates to
forward foreign exchange contracts. The net notional amount
of forward foreign exchange contracts has been disclosed in
note 3.1(a).

Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in
advance on service maintenance contracts.

Included in other payables and accruals is an entrusted loan
from an associate of HK$268,800,000 (2016: Nil). The loan
from an associate is denominated in RMB and is unsecured,
interest-free and expected to be settled in one year.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method.

The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

16. &

=~

(c)

5 R EALEAAKIE =)

EMmEMNRERESRESR
FEBERBINESGH 22 H
104,910,000 (=T — /RN F ¢
47,780,000/ 7T) - REFINE S D
CERECENRMES () FEE -

BELERARRAXBRERERL
CHEAERABE XNZ2ERA
-

HibENKBEREFRERRE
—HBERARRTEZEZREX
268,800,000 T (=T — R F :
®) ZER-—MBEARRMHRZ
EXUARKE  /EEM .
RELEHR—FNFE -

17. ELEF 18

BB BEREERERMERS
BEHE -

BERBAEE/ (AB)FEZEHMN

T -

2017 2016
—ZT—tHF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FA&T
At 1 January n—H—H 33,466 34,411

Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement 3t A (1B B )EZEEEBEE
of profit or loss (Note 23) (/Z/j/?E.?S) 17.294 (2,013)
Exchange difference bE 3, =58 2,205 1,068
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 52,965 33,466

Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

BERBREENABRERFAZEY

year are as follows: m
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EBRF
Deferred tax assets - Inventories and trade ELEBEEE -FERES HK$’000 HK$'000
receivables provisions U IR R FET FA&T
At 1 January ®—A—H 66,689 62,074

Credited to the consolidated statement of profit STAGERBEER

or loss 19,651 4,822
Exchange difference ME 3 = 5R 2,527 (207)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 88,867 66,689

BUEERERBRLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

17. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

i

17. EERIE (&

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Deferred tax liabilities — Accelerated tax EERIEEE - ERIEITE HK$’000 HK$’000

depreciation and others REHAM FHET FAETT

At 1 January W—A—H (33,223) (27,663)
Debited to the consolidated statement MhaHFEaERR

of profit or loss (2,357) (6,835)

Exchange difference M ZERE (822) 1,275

At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H (35,902) (33,223)

Included in “others” are deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect
of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in the PRC

of HK$23,562,000 (2016: HK$23,396,000).

18. Borrowings

[Ef I BERPEMNECEZ XD IRE
FIFER 2 ELER B B E23,562,000/8
T(ZZF— N : 23,396,000/87T) °

18. 18 &

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MisE FHBT FHET

Non-current FFRE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIERIRITEE (@) - 1,848,265
Finance lease liabilities BMABESAE () 642 654
642 1,848,919

Current TE

Unsecured bank borrowings EILIRIRITEE (@) 6,595,493 2,340,355
Secured mortgage loan BIRFIZIBER (b) 45,894 55,338
Finance lease liabilities REREAE () 531 429
6,641,918 2,396,122
Total borrowings BEE (d) 6,642,560 4,245,041
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18. Borrowings (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Unsecured bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, non-current unsecured loans of
HK$929,992,000 and HK$918,273,000 were repayable on 6 September
2018 and 9 November 2018 respectively. The loans were unsecured
and bore interest at rates as disclosed in section (e) below.

18. 6 &/

Hiat

(a)

EETIRITIEE
R—ZFE—-—RF+=-ZR=+—H"
929,992,000/ 7T % 918,273,000/8
MZERPEAMERED RN F
—NFAARBEZZ-N\F+—-A
NEEE ZFEFARBEEMRERT
X(e) i 2 B8 2 M EEHE o

Secured mortgage loan (b) HBERZEBER
The loan is secured by buildings with net book value of HK$191,092,000 RZZE—+F+=ZR=+—H  BER
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$195,303,000). The loan contains a NEE®EFEA191,092,0008 t( =
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid T — X4 :195,303,0008 L) 2 &
after one year of HK$36,450,000 (2016: HK$45,894,000) is classified FEEA  ZEERHBREEZRE
as current. BERER MR- FREREZEXR
&0 4536,450,000 L(=ZF — < F
45,894,000 7T ) D AENER -
Finance lease liabilities (c) BMEMBEARE
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset HREVNNHEEEZEFSREL
revert to the lessor in the event of default. A HEEEEEREER -
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross finance lease liabilities WEMEAER
— minimum lease payments: — KA ERIE
Within 1 year —ER 631 482
Between 1 and 5 years —ZEHE 758 724
1,389 1,206
Future finance charges on finance leases BRERE 7 RKpES H (216) (123)
1,173 1,083
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEMEAEBEZRENT -
is as follows:
Within 1 year —ER 531 429
Between 1 and 5 years —FERE 642 654
1,173 1,083

BUEERERBRLF
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18. Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d

18. 6 &/

Hiat : (4)

The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: (d) FAEBZEEERTIHEER
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total
RITHEE mEHEaE et
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF T RF ZE—+tF T RF ZE—tF —ZT—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FET FET FERT FET
Within 1 year —FR 6,641,387 2,395,693 531 429 6,641,918 2,396,122
Between 1 and 2 years —Z2MF - 918,273 420 375 420 918,648
Between 2 and 5 years —EHF - 929,992 222 279 222 930,271
6,641,387 4,243,958 1,173 1,083 6,642,560 4,245,041
The effective interest rates were as follows: (e) ERMEWMT
2017 2016
—Z2—+tHF T -RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEARITEE 1.60%-11.50% 1.50%-10.09%
Secured mortgage loan BEEMIRBER 1.68%-2.02% 1.15%-1.28%
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAR 3.60%-4.99% 4.99%-6.79%

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the

following currencies:

0

BEZEREASEATIIEEE :

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-R

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiHxT FAT

HK$ AT 481,394 55,338

RMB AR#E 2,476,380 1,612,470

uss$ ES 3,189,497 2,380,791

S$ N T 101,806 108,312

THB B 305,928 71,271

RP EEE 87,555 16,859

6,642,560 4,245,041
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19. Revenue and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (4R

—tEFFTZA=+—RLEE

19. @ & 2 =& #

DEEMDERERNER 2 &S E1TH
EIEANBR JF1E"*BE‘%5E&EA"*BF%7
RERMABER -—BzhAGRBH - K&
ErERaBTHREBAERESSE - 5t

i E $EIZ%—ﬁEAZ”£¥/\§\
BUTERERZARESDOHEEZE
Gl

Wi R AX SR EE S BEE LW
EREEDBELLAXSRELSD
% -

BEDBENAAZFAETERDEE
B BREERNSSMERIEEZER - FI

directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs

within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for

the year is set out below.

(@)

Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

Segments

2 &P

MEZHH  ZHEMEREMLD A
THER -

FAREERERD B LD A RBFME
Rzl dE D BEMEN T -

(a) %ﬁ&/-\_l_
REBZFEEXEBHHHBWOT :

Principal activities

EREK

Components products

R EE fn

Mobility digital devices

Cloud and big data
analytics

ERERRBIBEOMN

Network and data
security

BEMEERE

Provision of IT component products (CPUs and hard disks) and provision of supply
chain solutions for the Original Equipment Manufacturer.

REERPHRE M E R (hREHE R MER) M ARRERERREHERERTR -

Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,
drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).

REEMNNERBR(BEENRNSHE - F# - BARE - 25
o BEEE) -

REEB) T8k - 3DITE]

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,
databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

REANEARRERR G CERSGTA(REME - BIERLS - UniNTRRISES - BUix
JEE Ko (A7 ) B B A RHR A R b R AT RN T BRI S SRR -

Provision of network security hardware and software required for big data and cloud
computing.

REXBBEREAEMF 2BR LM REM -
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq)

19. &8

)& %B ﬁ *4 (#&)

(@ Business segments (continued) (a) XK a)
During the year, the Group changed the structure of its internal FRN - AEBERRABTESAAN
financial reporting to the executive directors which resulted ERHTBME 2 &EB - 55
in a change to the composition of its reportable segments. MEDIEBRE o KM EMH
Comparative figures for the operating segment information BEEDHBERFPZERETFTE
disclosed in this note have been restated to conform to current B UHEARFREZE25AR -
year’s presentation.
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2017 HEz—_FT—tHF+=-HA=+—H
are as follows: EFEZHHEENT
Mobility Cloud and
Components digital big data Network and
products devices analytics data security Total
EHER PR
R#ER BBRE  KBEIN FER2 ok
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TR THER FER THET
Total segment revenue DE s 13,242,819 22,357,439 10,557,511 8,385,315 54,543,084
Segment results DEEE 426,339 289,900 210,925 154,389 1,081,553
Finance costs BB (204,861)
876,692
Share of associates’ profits AEEE D ENRH 48,528
Share of a joint venture’s loss ~ DIEAE M EEE (5,509)
Profit before taxation BRAE AR 919,711
Taxation BIE (203,270)
Profit for the year FREF 716,441
Reportable segment assets RSN HEE 3,927,783 6,523,110 3,025,891 2,376,892 15,853,676
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19. 0Bz RTEHER «

ES S IE D)
BHz_Z2—X&+-_A=+—H

19. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq)

(@) Business segments (continued) (a)

The restated segment results for the year ended 31 December

2016 are as follows:

I FEZEREN D EBEENT

Mobility Cloud and

Gomponents digital big data  Network and
products devices analytics  data security Total

EHER Pk
B ER BHgm  KEBEAT FE%% wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TR THx
Total segment revenue AEMEBE 13,632,376 17,978,081 9,394,241 7,156,620 48,161,318
Segment results DEEE 301,482 230,971 134,847 132,536 799,836
Finance costs HEER (141,242)
658,594
Share of associates’ profits DIEEE D ERF 36,108
Share of a joint venture’s loss ~ AEAELEEE (6,927)
Profit before taxation FRAEAT A 688,775
Taxation A (136,860)
Profit for the year FREF 551,915
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 3,830,887 4,604,359 2,316,206 1,758,091 12,509,543
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R >< A A
19. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq) 19. @z koBER =
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss (b) AIKETHERREERN
L2
and assets £ IR
Profit i )
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the HROHBENEEEERERME
consolidated statement of profit or loss is not presented as the A2 FEWmAER - W2
segment profit is the same as the profit for the year presented DEBENEGEERRERAZERA
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. A AR o
Assets BE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Reportable segment assets AR EDEEE 15,853,676 12,509,543
Goodwill [EES 322,995 306,905
Interests in associates REE R B ER 868,238 529,946
Interests in a joint venture RELEDLENER 43,844 48,470
Deferred tax assets RIEIEEE 88,867 66,689
Other receivables and prepayments o th lE YR TE R FE N R 1,494,685 851,472
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEY 1,981,047 1,980,026
Consolidated total assets RAREE 20,653,352 16,293,051
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. 2L AR EA
19. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq 19. @z koBER =
(c) Geographical information (c) HEEHR
The Group’s four business segments operate principally in North REBMEXBHB»HBEENILE
Asia and South East Asia. MREREE -
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Revenue Wz
North Asia ik 43,999,522 39,222,760
South East Asia HER 10,543,562 8,938,558
Total segment revenue DEM R AR 54,543,084 48,161,318
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer WaBRERFAMEBRSE °
is located.
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Assets BE
North Asia i) 12,713,782 10,255,952
South East Asia HEL 3,139,894 2,253,591
Reportable segment assets AmEDHEE 15,853,676 12,509,543
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the ARENHEERBEEMEM S ©

assets are located.
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20. Other Gains, Net 20. H Mg A 7F
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Interest income FEd A 15,637 11,092
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE « WEN&RE 2 EIE (1,031) (46)
Net exchange gain/(loss) T 5 Uz (B518) ) F 58 2,803 (5,716)
Other Hith 802 3,576
18,211 8,906
21. Operating Profit 21. &&= F
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: R T TR (FFA) AT &IER
S
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories FERAN 52,196,047 46,304,580
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments EIRAN(BREESNE)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare —¥&  FERREF 594,319 484,536
- Provident fund contributions —RIEEHZ 82,307 64,480
Operating lease rentals in respect of premises MERERZKEHERS
and warehouses 62,202 57,332
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
— audit fees —EZEH 6,613 7,503
— non-audit fees —IEEEBR 2,508 1,125
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WENREITE 28,624 21,669
Inventories provisions TERE 77,565 11,927
Net provision for and net write off of trade B 5 FEW R IB BB F 58 S
receivables JRER 107,749 66,723
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss PE N (Was) 518 F 5
— excluding net exchange (gain)/loss in other —T@%/H\@%EZEPL
losses =),/ BRI (98,166) 102,672
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R 2R B 5E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Finance Costs

22. & H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix FAT
Interest expense on: THEEZFERE
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 34 11
- Unsecured bank borrowings —EIERRITEE 204,035 140,392
— Secured mortgage loan —BERFRIBER 696 766
— Finance lease liabilities —-BEHEaE 96 73
204,861 141,242
Taxation 23. B 18
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RIFEERRMBZHIESEIRE -
profit or loss represents:
2017 2016
—E—+F =X
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fix FAT
Current taxation AERFRIE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BANEH 67,109 10,558
- Overseas taxation —BINHIE 155,265 119,709
(Over)/under-provision of overseas taxation in BT FEEINIIE
prior years (BEERE) BETR (1,810) 4,580
Deferred taxation (Note 17) IR TE (M aE17) (17,294) 2,013
203,270 136,860

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated at
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

ZE—LFEANEBREREE T —
tF+ A=+ BLFEZHETE
R EFIAFE16.56% (Z T —/N&F
16.5% ) FH IR -
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23. Taxation (continued)

Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the

AR

23 . ﬁ IE (4

N IR I F Al AT B SR B M A A &
BEETERKEMERRER 2 W X5

s

countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate. = °

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

ERRNARURFEZIERER-F
ENF-A-HERBRBRZENAEEZ
MBI BN % 2 TATRT ©

AEEBRBAEN 2 HBRERTER
FRELZHERSBIERNT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation B A E A 919,711 688,775
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%1E 151,752 113,648
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TREBEBEAEEE TR E 2
jurisdictions o 33,621 7,326
Income not subject to taxation AR WA (9,447) (7,289)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes IS S TSR 2 19,498 14,697
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BRRERE), BE
L (1,810) 4,580
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised st RIERFHIEE 18 2 B &
2 6,774 2,781
Tax effect of withholding tax on profit of the TERME P EKTB A REF 2
PRC subsidiaries k32 2,882 1,113
Taxation charge I H 203,270 136,860

24. Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the 24. KA B ZEE A E (L

Company

The loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$6,380,000 (2016: profit of

HK$552,761,000).
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25. Dividends 25. R B
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FABEZEMNAKRRT
Company attributable to the year EREFEEARE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZTE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Final dividend proposed after the end of the RSB R B IR AR A
reporting period of approximately HK14.7 R EBARLI14. 7810
cents (2016: approximately HK12.4 cents) (Z2—RF 4124
per ordinary share B 215,000 180,000
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period RIEEHREBRERBRESERRE
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting HARERAAE -
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) E—BBEFEEEBNSILR
Company attributable to the previous financial year, F R E RIS 2 B AR
approved and paid during the year NAERFEARE

2017 2016
—ZE—tF S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Final dividend in respect of the previous L —HMIRFEERFARE
financial year, approved and paid during the MR 2 RERRR B &%
year of HK12.4 cents (2016: HK12.4 cents) LB 12.4800( =2
per ordinary share — N 12.4340) 180,406 180,350
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26. Earnings Per Share

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$716,441,000 (2016: HK$551,915,000) and the weighted average
of 1,423,259,000 shares (2016: 1,442,286,000 shares) in issue.

26. ZRE A
S RIN

FAGRERBNEZARTEEFTB A
JE {5 3% F 716,441,000 T ( — & — X
% : 551,915,000/ 70) M B 1T K% D
2 hi#E 5 E01,423,259,000 (==&

— N 1 1,442,286,0000%) 5t E

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—BzE®arrLak
(thousands) (F%) 1,454,404 1,455,356
Exercise of share options (thousands) 1TERERRRE(TER) 1,153 -
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) B Bl AR & B (FRR) (109) 697)
Effect of deferred shares (thousands) B 2 2 (TR (32,189) (12,373)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares as RTtZA=+—HzLEk
at 31 December (thousands) IEFHE(FR) 1,423,259 1,442,286
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) SREREF (FRBW) 50.34 38.27

Diluted

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$716,441,000 (2016: HK$551,915,000) and the weighted average
number of shares of 1,425,671,000 (2016: 1,445,972,000 shares),

calculated as follows:

BE

FRNORBERANEZERARGERIFTEA
JEAG S F)716,441,0008 (& — <
% : 551,915,000 7t ) M % {9 2 0 #E

S #1,425,671,00008 (=& — /<4 -

1,445,972 ,000f) st & T :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BB T A 2 a8
issue (thousands) (FRR) 1,423,259 1,442,286
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share R B N R v TR
options (thousands) (FR%) 2,412 72
Effect of deemed issue of deferred shares for nil RIEBEBRITELER D 2 FE
consideration (thousands) (Fh%) - 3,614
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for TR ERR 2 mikaniE
diluted earnings per share (thousands) FHE (TR 1,425,671 1,445,972
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) G ERN (FREN) 50.25 38.17
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 21 EERENEEEN=
Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM S
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to REAENIERNEARAIZESE 2
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: e @zEmT
2017 2016
—E—+F ZERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Fees we 699 677
Other emoluments HEmpe
— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EAH e REREZERH 11,305 11,281
— Discretionary bonus —BIBIEAL 8,153 7,882
— Contributions to pension scheme —RIRS TR 271 149
20,428 19,989
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continuea)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out below:

(a)

(&)

EEME @)

2. EEREREEENE

BEEHE_T—tEtF+-A=
t—HLEFEZHME&HINMT :

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXHER BiRg
gz ik EEER Sl =prAan sHEIHR &5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors WITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,200 2,800 18 8,018
Chow Ying Chi s - 1,181 2,430 181 3,792
Ong Wei Hiam, William &M 99 2,470 710 18 3,297
Chan Hoi Chau B - 786 1,470 18 2,274
Li Yue =35 - 538 365 18 921
Yao Jie %R - 1,130 378 18 1,526
Non-executive Directors FITES
Liang Xin 2 120 - - - 120
Independent Non-executive By JFEIITES
Directors
Lam Hin Chi ERY 120 - - - 120
Li Wei FE 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HER 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong T 120 - - - 120
699 11,305 8,153 2n 20,428
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27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

(@

Directors’ emoluments (continueq)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

2. EEREREEENE

(&)

(a) EEME )

BEEHE_T-RFE+-A=
t—HLEFEZHME&HINMT :

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXgek B
BENE ok FEE EIBTEAL HEIER CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FAET FHBL FEL FAEL
Executive Directors HTE=
Li Jialin BEM - 5,200 2,800 18 8,018
Chow Ying Chi FRE - 1,179 2,430 59 3,668
Ong Wei Hiam, William &M 77 2,467 700 18 3,262
Chan Hoi Chau BRI - 786 1,220 18 2,024
Li Yue =3 - 515 387 18 920
Yao Jie BA - 1,134 345 18 1,497
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Liu Li 213 50 - - - 50
Liang Xin 2 120 - - - 120
Independent Non-executive B IEHITES
Directors
Lam Hin Chi EBD 120 - - - 120
Li Wei e 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HAER 70 - - - 70
Wang Xiaolong T 70 - - - 70
Ng Yat Cheung REE 50 - - - 50
677 11,281 7,882 149 19,989

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$480,000 (2016: HK$430,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the current and prior years.

During the current and prior years, no Director of the Company
waived any emoluments.

EXHWECEEMEe RSN FIEBILIE
HMITEE 2 #4480,0008 T( —F— X
£ 430,000/87T) °

REMEBEFERERNZEA LN
ERAME  FARIIBEEMARERK
BEMARNEBE IR 2 B AE S BER

& -

REMMBEFE  ARFAEFAER
ZWBREFME -
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" . = E— M
27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EERSHREEEMNS
Emoluments (continueq) ()
(b) Five highest paid individuals by EBEBESH AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AREFBERATEME TS ALTE
Group for the year included three (2016: two) Directors whose B=%(ZE—X E MB)EE -
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. BEZHMEeE R EX2 29
The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2016: three) PR FRASNFHHERE (=
individuals during the year are as follows: FE—XRE: ZZ)ATZHME WD T
2017 2016
—E2—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Fees we - -
Basic salaries and allowances EARE & R 2,484 4,332
Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 5,862 6,511
Contributions to pension schemes BIRES TR 248 77
8,594 10,920
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeENFT3EE :

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band <& i E 2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 70 23,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 702 4,000,00078 7T 1 2
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7C25,000,0007 7T 1 -
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28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

28. B ERERKRMEE

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) BR®iAIEAEEE T
generated from operations REFHEZHER
2017 2016
—E—tfF T—REF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation MR B A 919,711 688,775
Interest income A BIA (15,637) (11,092)
Interest expense MERY 204,861 141,242
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE  BEKRENE 28,624 21,669
Share of associates’ profits N a) NIl (48,528) (36,108)
Share of a joint venture’s loss NMEEEEER 5,509 5,927
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BEKRBE2ER
equipment 1,031 46
Operating profit before working capital changes BBEESEHA 2 LE R 1,095,571 810,459
Changes in working capital BEEGHE
Trade and other receivables B 5 RHEAMEMFIAR (3,401,596) (651,796)
Inventories FE (555,409) 265,683
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERRIE 896,857 823,509
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operations QG (A /FERe %8 (1,964,577) 1,247,855

BEERERARLE -2

—tggw 157



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

28 R ERERKRMEE

(#)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) METBMELAEREZ
s agw Ml
activities AR
Borrowings
)
(Note 18)
(PF3E18)
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2017 R=-—Z—-t&—-H—H 4,245,041
Changes from financing cash flows: MERLRELE
Proceeds from new bank loans MRITERAETIE 24,596,184
Repayment of borrowings BEREE (22,338,113
Interest paid EARAE (204,861)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSNELHRE 2,053,210
Other changes: Hi g :
Interest expense FERE 204,861
Exchange adjustments BEE i, 352 139,448
Total other changes Hitn @845 344,309
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+t%+=A=1+—-H 6,642,560
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29. Commitments

(@

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had commitments
to make capital contributions of HK$175,293,000 (2016:
HK$235,860,000) to certain investments.

Commitments under operating leases

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

RZE—-—tEtHF+ZZA =+ —
H AEEERAETERELE
175,293,000 L (=ZF — /R F ¢
235,860,000/8 7T ) 2 & HE o

KREHET 2KIE

R—ZZE—+F+=-_A=+—8 "
AEBEARETATRBEEERE
2RABRREEEMNREBEDT :

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE-RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBT FHIT

Within 1 year —FR 44,141 39,031
Between 1 and 5 years —ZhHF 19,260 18,696
63,401 57,727

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of premises and
warehouses held under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of one to three years, with an option to
renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEEBRZERBLKEHERSEZME

=8

ERZEBEA  HEZMNTFH R
%_
B I FRTRE R AT B IR

E-F O RENEEIHRITEE
cHEEER

FERRNED -

BUEERERBRLF

—z—+55% 159
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30. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

@

160 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li”),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$200,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2016: HK$200,000).

Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2016: HK$15,000).

License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co., a
company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of HK$14,000
in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License to Kong
Lung Ind Co. (2016: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$56,962,000
during the year (2016: HK$64,358,000).

Annual Report 2017

30.AEALRE

INTREREEALETZRS

(a)

EEES

REBHREFERBR QAR
ARIERHRPTESTEMELE
(IZxREDBETEREZAF)
H-EESBIRIL—HEAER
Z o REZWE  AEEREF
ERAERAFZM ATH200,000%
TT(ZF— X4 : 200,000 7T) °

s
REBBEERERABRAA(AD
AETRERENTESTTRAEARTE
BRER 2z AE)FI M — 1 REHE#H
#FoREZBE  AEBEMRSEF
ERARARZ AME15,000%
T (ZZF— X% :15,00087L) °

R E

AREEEBEEERAR(ZTERLER
FEBRRZAREL D -
BREZGZE  NEBRPEEH
MMRERAZHEEE14,0008 T
FHEEEERAAN(ZZT—XNEF:
14,0008 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & E —ZE—+F+ - A=+—HILFE

. . g LR
31. Statement of Financial Position of the 31. R DB Z B Ak R 5=
Company
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
M5t FBT FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MENKRE 953 789
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIEE 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,116,114 2,115,950
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary e U —FEI B B 2 R FR 126,270 -
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 303 309
Cash and cash equivalents BEMREEEY 34,630 18,742
161,203 19,051
Total assets HEE 2,277,317 2,135,001
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 13 145,986 145,440
Reserves EAc 15 752,769 909,720
Total equity R 898,755 1,055,160
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities RBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary FE— R B A R F0E 1,378,473 1,079,754
Other payables and accruals H A ER R IE)SZW ;# 89 87
Total liabilities FG =R 1,378,562 1,079,841
Total equity and liabilities EEkEERE 2,277,317 2,135,001
Net current liabilities REAEFE (1,217,359) (1,060,790)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBREBERE 898,755 1,055,160
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 EEERZE-NEFE=ZAZ-THHER
March 2018. BT -
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi
ZEM PR
Director Director
= EF

EagEsrRERLeE —2—+5ax 161
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

32.

—+

112
STOERT

RE HF o 4
W E |
| N -
TR K-
T+
&I
N2 3 am

(=]
#E B
E/
gE

BEEAMBHRRTIEBE - FEGE
REEEMREBE_Z—+F+A=
T—HALEFERRERBLRRAYN B
BREMZZREET B NBE
BREATAREAEEARE -

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RTIBEHARZE

Mz et HBER

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments EBYERMELRNFENR 2T A 1 January 2018
—T-NF—H—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with BB EHREERE15R - KHHEEF 1 January 2018
customers FI7EHZ A —E-NF—A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based BEMERELEREN - URGAERZ T 1 January 2018
payment: Classification and measurement 11 URGBER S TN Z.2 DR E —ET—-NF—H—H

of share-based payment transactions Z1EE]
HK (IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

HKFRS 16, Leases

HK (IFRIC) 28, Uncertainty over income tax
treatments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
impacts on the Group’s financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has
been substantially completed for HKFRS9 and HKFRS15, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report
for the six months ending 30 June 2018. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition options, when
the standards are initially applied in that financial report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+F+-_A=+—HIEFE

32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New 32.

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial
instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, including the measurement
of impairment for financial assets. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS
39 for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the exemption
from restating comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

(@)  Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

- The classification for debt instruments is determined based
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
asset. If a debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
interest revenue, impairment and gains/losses on disposal
will be recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B ZE - —+tF+ _A=+—HILEFE

32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December

201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continueq)

(@) Classification and measurement

- For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless
of the entity’s business model. The only exception is if
the equity security is not held for trading and the entity
irrevocably elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be recognised in
profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments on that
security will be recognised in other comprehensive income

without recycling.

With respect to the Group’s investments in unlisted equity
interests which are carried at cost (see note 10), they will be
classified as FVTPL upon adoption of HKFRS 9, and the fair value
gain or loss from such investments due to re-measurement will
be recognised as an adjustment against the opening balance

of equity at 1 January 2018.

The Group has assessed that its other financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their
respective classification and measurements upon the adoption

of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of
a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to
changes of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in
other comprehensive income (without reclassification to profit or
loss). The Group currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will
not have any impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b)  Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss
is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts
and circumstances. The Group expects that the application of
the expected credit loss model will result in earlier recognition
of credit losses. Based on the latest assessment, if the Group
were to adopt the new impairment requirements at 31 December
2017, accumulated impairment loss at that date would not
increase significantly as compared with that recognised under
HKAS 39. As a consequence, the adjustment to be made to
the opening balances of net assets and retained profits at 1
January 2018 would not be material.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue
arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue
from construction contracts.
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not

yet Effective for the year ended 31 December

201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified

the following areas which are expected to be affected:

(@  Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
2.20. Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised over time, whereas revenue from the sale of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership

have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the

entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(@  Timing of revenue recognition continuea)
If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point
in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not
likely to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue.

(b)  Significant financing component
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for
the time value of money when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether the payments from
customers are received significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December

201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(c)  Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the Group’s
products, the Group estimates the level of expected returns
and makes an adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group has assessed that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost of
sales when the customers have a right of return. However, the
new requirement to recognise separately a return asset for the
products expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group
currently adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory for the
expected returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect transition method
for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2018. Based on the latest assessment, the Group expects
that the transition adjustment to be made upon the initial adoption of

HKFRS 15 will not be material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2.18, currently the Group classifies leases into
the finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of
the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets,
in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New 32.

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
201 7 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties, plant and machinery and office equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note
29(b), at 31 December 2017 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to HK$63,401,000, some
of which will be payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date.
Some of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account
the applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases
entered into or terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16
and the effects of discounting.
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32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New 32.
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
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201 7 (continued) i’;ﬁ— E\IJ ﬁg
EE
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) EBEREEDNE16%E
HE )
HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 EBMBRELERF16K I - T —
January 2019. The standard offers different transition options and NE—F—HBszEHB s EEBRBE
practical expedients, including the practical expedient to grandfather oo ZIEERIRHIARBEAZLER
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements are, or HEAHE  PEREZAGNLIR AL
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the Group will EERApPSHEETIG 2 ERER
apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts FE o WMERLEREERE - AASE
that are entered into on or after the date of initial application. If the B EEREXAERBBS 2BV
practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will need to reassess all AXEBEAMBRELERS165 2
of its decisions about which existing contracts are, or contain, leases, HETE MNWEZEEEETHE
using the new definition. Depending on whether the Group elects to AR EFEEFTRFTETEETSTIEME
adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective BARIPLIREASNBRIPRSHE 2k
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening F o BT AREBR L EREBBEBMWEHHZE
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Goup may or B » XSIRBRKETEBE T EHERNE R
may not need to restate comparative information for any changes in FERBH 2 FNHEDERIEE Bt 2
accounting resulting from the reassessment. FHE . KEFEREEELA e~ EE
EMABH I EN S EHEIE
fal th B # -
The Group has not yet decided whether it will choose to take advantage REBEMARATELRENHEEER
of this practical expedient, and which transition approach to be taken. FEREBAES FH,£
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M E=R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out below:

BEHR2EHEIINOT

AEEBETEMBFECEEUREES

sl E
Results E 4
Years ended 31 December BZ+=-A=1+—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
- B of : ZT—RF —E-hF —T—-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FER FHET FHET FHET FET
Revenue e 54,543,084 48,161,318 45,575,640 41,892,709 40,239,286
Profit before taxation BRBTRF 919,711 688,775 561,998 769,029 658,302
Taxation BE (203,270) (136,860) (111,617) (143,361) (133,675)
Profit for the year o 3 716,441 551,915 450,381 625,668 505,127
Attributable to: AN ALEL -
Equity Shareholders of the ARAIERFEA
Company 716,441 551,915 450,381 607,374 502,725
Non-controlling interests IR - - - 18,294 22,402
716,441 551,915 450,381 625,668 505,127
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December ®+=B=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+F ZT-REF —ET-AhF —T—mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FHEIT FHET FHET
Total assets BEE 20,653,352 16,293,051 16,768,378 13,129,424 11,527,662
Total liabilities mafE (15,818,638) (12,429,413) (12,949,271) (9,136,466) (7,907 ,262)
Total equity g 4,834,714 3,863,638 3,819,107 3,092,958 3,620,400

172 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017



/ BAEN
VSTECS

VSTECS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEHEAERAERZA

Unit 3312, 33/F

China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
EETrREDP2005%EEhMEBEEAEI3E3312E
Tel: +852 2786 1836 Fax: +852 2786 1746
www.vstecs.com



	封面
	概要
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	業務模式及策略方向
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及公司秘書履歷
	環境、社會及管治報告
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合損益表
	綜合其他全面收入表
	綜合權益變動報表
	綜合現金流量報表
	財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底

